2012 Annual Report

Dear Fellow Shareholders:
I am delighted to report that 2012 was a banner year for Coastal Banking Company, reflecting the positive impact
of key strategic decisions we made during the height of the global recession.
Our net income for 2012 was nearly $1.9 million, or $0.51 per basic common share after adjusting for preferred
stock dividends. That compares with net income of $357,224, or an $0.08 loss per basic common share in 2011. The
biggest impact on net income was an impressive 136 percent increase in noninterest income, to nearly $49 million.
Why the improvement, which extended substantial strides begun in 2010? The answer comes down to two of
Coastal Banking’s greatest strengths: our people and our strategic planning process.
Our talented employees and our planning capabilities have always served us well, but never more than when we
– like most financial services companies – were impacted by the global recession.
Beginning in late 2008, our company endured a beating from the recession-driven instability of the commercial
real estate market, which drove up loan losses and held down interest income, usually the lifeblood for community
banks. With the prospects for a commercial real estate turnaround still dim by 2010, we did what we do best –
we carefully assessed the situation, considered various options and selected those that we felt confident would
quickly and most positively impact the company.
Our time-tested strategic planning process, which encourages input from all employees, has never been more
effective. By deciding to capitalize on strategic initiatives where opportunity matched our expertise, we changed
course and accelerated our investment in existing sources of noninterest income.
In the last two years, we have considerably expanded our SBA lending and mortgage banking divisions. The latter
has dramatically increased our noninterest income levels, while our bread-and-butter commercial loan portfolio
has begun to improve.
Our commitment to continual improvement is reflected in the tagline and messaging in a new internal marketing
campaign for employees we are launching in 2013 called Choose Excellence. That focused pursuit is evident in our
five Guiding Principles for Excellence, the pillars of our campaign — Performance, People, Partnerships, Pride and
Profits. As shareholders, you – and I – can be especially pleased by our return to success in the Profits category!
You can see the tangible results in the 2012 annual report that accompanies this letter. But you can also feel the
change if you should visit any of our branch locations or loan offices these days, as our re-energized associates are
working harder than ever to serve the needs of our expanding customer base – and our shareholders, too.
These accomplishments would not have occurred without the intelligence, professionalism, courage and creativity
of our seasoned management team, and our remarkably stable employee base. Many employees remain from the
group that joined us in 1999, the year Coastal Banking was formed. I take great pride in the people who work with
us, and who have carried us through a trying few years into a future bright with possibilities.
While at times the pace of our transition may have seemed slow to those of us in the trenches, the evolution has
actually occurred remarkably quickly. That is further proof that our employees and leaders are standard bearers for
excellence in our industry.
I feel confident that our positive transformation will accelerate further in 2013 and beyond, thanks to our focus on
encouraging all employees to continually think innovatively and responsibly in shaping our future.
2012 was a success and 2013 is poised to shine even brighter as we continually strive to serve our consumers while
increasing shareholder value.
Sincerely,

Mike Sanchez

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC.
36 Sea Island Parkway
Beaufort, South Carolina 29907
(843) 522-1228

April 1, 2013

Dear Shareholder:
You are cordially invited to attend our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders on Wednesday,
May 22, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. at the Hilton Garden Inn, 1500 Queen Street, Beaufort, South Carolina
29902. We sincerely hope that you will be able to attend the meeting and look forward to seeing you.
The attached Notice of the Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describes the formal business to
be transacted at the meeting. We will also report on our operations during the past year and during the
first quarter of fiscal year 2013, as well as our plans for the future.
A copy of our Annual Report, which contains information on our operations and financial
performance as well as our audited financial statements, is also included with this Proxy Statement.
Please take this opportunity to become involved in the affairs of Coastal. Whether or not you
expect to be present at the meeting, please mark, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and return it to us
in the envelope provided as soon as possible. Returning the proxy card WILL NOT deprive you of your
right to attend the meeting and vote your shares in person. If you attend the meeting and wish to do so,
you may withdraw your proxy and vote your own shares.

Michael G. Sanchez
President and
Chief Executive Officer

6275813.3

Suellen Rodeffer Garner
Chairman of the Board

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC.
36 Sea Island Parkway
Beaufort, South Carolina 29907
(843) 522-1228
NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD WEDNESDAY, MAY 22, 2013
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Coastal Banking Company, Inc. (“Coastal” or the
“Company”) will be held on Wednesday, May 22, 2013 at 10:00 a.m. at the Hilton Garden Inn, 1500
Queen Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902, for the following purposes:
(1)

to elect three (3) persons to serve as Class II Directors for a three-year term;

(2)

to ratify the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public Accountants, LLC, as
the independent registered public accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2013; and

(3)

to transact any other business as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournments of the meeting.

The Board of Directors has set the close of business on March 27, 2013 as the record date for
determining the shareholders who are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting.
We hope that you will be able to attend the meeting. We ask, however, whether or not you plan
to attend the meeting, that you mark, date, sign and return the enclosed proxy card as soon as possible.
Promptly returning your proxy card will help ensure the greatest number of shareholders are present,
whether in person or by proxy.
If you attend the meeting, you may revoke your proxy at the meeting and vote your shares in
person. You may revoke your proxy at any time before the proxy is exercised.
By Order of the Board of Directors,

April 1, 2013

Michael G. Sanchez
President and
Chief Executive Officer

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY
MATERIALS FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 22, 2013
Visit our website at http://www.coastalbanking.com and click on Shareholder Proxy to access
Coastal Banking Company, Inc.’s Proxy Statement and Annual Report

6275813.3

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC.
36 Sea Island Parkway
Beaufort, South Carolina 29907
(843) 522-1228
__________________________________________________________
PROXY STATEMENT FOR 2013 ANNUAL MEETING
__________________________________________________________

INTRODUCTION
Time and Place of the Meeting
Our Board of Directors is furnishing this Proxy Statement in connection with its solicitation of
proxies for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Wednesday, May 22, 2013 at 10:00
a.m. at the Hilton Garden Inn, 1500 Queen Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902, and at any
adjournments of the meeting.
Record Date and Mailing Date
The close of business March 27, 2013 is the record date for the determination of shareholders
entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting. We first mailed this Proxy Statement and the
accompanying proxy card to shareholders on or about April 10, 2013.
Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
As of the close of business on the record date, Coastal had authorized 10,000,000 shares of
common stock, $.01 par value, of which 2,602,367 shares were issued and outstanding. Each issued and
outstanding share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all matters presented at the meeting.
The Company also has 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized, of which
9,950 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A (the “Series A Preferred
Stock”), are authorized, issued, and outstanding. The Series A Preferred Stock is not entitled to vote on
the matters presented at this meeting.
VOTING AT THE ANNUAL MEETING
Proposals to be Considered
Shareholders will be asked to elect three (3) persons to serve as Class II Directors for a three-year
term. The persons nominated to serve as Class II Directors, as well as the continuing directors, are
described beginning on page 4. The Board of Directors recommends shareholders vote FOR each of
the Class II nominees.
Shareholders will also be asked to ratify the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified Public
Accountants, LLC (“Mauldin & Jenkins”) to serve as the independent registered public accounting firm
for Coastal for the year ending December 31, 2013. The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR
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the ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm for 2013.
Procedures for Voting by Proxy
If you properly sign, return, and do not revoke your proxy, the persons appointed as proxies will
vote your shares according to the instructions you have specified on the proxy card. If you sign and
return your proxy card but do not specify how the persons appointed as proxies are to vote your shares,
your proxy will be voted FOR the election of the director nominees, FOR the ratification of the
appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins, and in the best judgment of the persons appointed as proxies as to all
other matters properly brought before the meeting. If any nominee for election to the Board of Directors
named in this Proxy Statement becomes unavailable for election for any reason, the proxy will be voted
for a substitute nominee selected by the Board of Directors.
You can revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted by delivering a written revocation of the
proxy or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date to Paul R. Garrigues, Chief Financial Officer, at 1891
South 14th Street, Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034 by the close of business on the day prior to the
shareholders meeting or by attending the meeting and voting in person.
Requirements for Shareholder Approval
A quorum will be present at the meeting if a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock
is represented in person or by valid proxy. We will count abstentions and broker non-votes, which are
described below, in determining whether a quorum exists. Only those votes actually cast for each
proposal, however, will be counted for purposes of determining whether a proposal received sufficient
votes to pass.
For the election of directors, a director nominee must receive more votes than any other nominee
for the particular seat on the Board of Directors to be elected. As a result, if you withhold your vote as to
one or more nominees, it will have no effect on the outcome of the election unless you cast that vote for a
competing nominee. At the present time, we do not know of any competing nominees.
To be approved, the ratification of the appointment of Mauldin & Jenkins requires the affirmative
vote of a majority of the shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting.
Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted in determining the minimum number of votes required
for approval and will, therefore, have the effect of negative votes.
Any other matters that may properly come before the Annual Meeting require the affirmative vote
of a majority of shares of common stock present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter.
Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted in determining the minimum number of votes required
for approval and will, therefore, have the effect of negative votes.
Abstentions. A shareholder who is present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting and who
abstains from voting on any or all proposals will be included in the number of shareholders present at the
Annual Meeting for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum. Abstentions do not count as
votes in favor of or against a given matter.
Broker Non-Votes. Brokers who hold shares for the accounts of their clients may vote these
shares either as directed by their clients or in their own discretion if permitted by the exchange or other
organization of which they are members. All NYSE and NASDAQ member brokers are prohibited from
exercising discretionary voting in all director elections and advisory resolutions on executive
compensation unless the broker has instructions from the beneficial shareholder on how to vote. Proxies
that contain a broker vote on one or more proposals but no vote on others are referred to as “broker non2

votes” with respect to the proposal(s) not voted upon. Broker non-votes are included in determining the
presence of a quorum. A broker non-vote, however, does not count as a vote in favor of or against a
particular proposal for which the broker has no discretionary voting authority, including uncontested
director elections.
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES
Coastal will pay for all costs associated with this proxy solicitation. Our directors, officers and
employees may, without additional compensation, solicit proxies by personal interview, telephone, fax or
otherwise. We will direct brokerage firms or other custodians, nominees or fiduciaries to forward our
proxy solicitation material to the beneficial owners of common stock held of record by these institutions
and will reimburse them for the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses they incur in connection with this
process.
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PROPOSAL I:
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors consists of 10 members and is divided into three classes, with four
members in Class I and three members each in Classes II and III. The directors in each class serve
staggered terms of three years each. The term of each class expires at the Annual Meeting in the years
indicated below and upon the election and qualification of the director’s successor. Each of our directors
is also a director of our wholly owned subsidiary, CBC National Bank.
Set forth below is information about each of our director nominees and continuing directors. The
Board of Directors nominated the director nominees based on the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board. The Class II director nominees are each standing
for re-election for a three-year term expiring in 2016.
The Board unanimously recommends shareholders vote FOR each of these nominees.
Class II Director Nominees (Term Expiring 2016)
Mark B. Heles, 63, a Class II Director, is a founding director who served on the Coastal Banking
Company Board from May 1999 until October 2005, after which he continued as a director on the
Lowcountry National Bank Board. He was re-elected to and has served on the Coastal Banking Company
Board since May 2008. He has served on multiple committees and currently serves on the Executive
Compensation and Management Resources and the North Directors Loan Committee. In 1976, he
graduated from the University of South Carolina with a degree in Business Administration/Finance. He is
the former president and founder of TempO Personnel Services, Inc., a full-service staffing agency with
offices in Beaufort and Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, which he sold in 2002. Mr. Heles is a
graduate of the South Carolina Bankers Association (SCBA) Bank Directors College. He is a former
president of the Hilton Head Island Rotary Club and past director for the Greater Beaufort Chamber of
Commerce. He currently serves as president of H&H Quality Properties, LLC a commercial and
residential real estate holding company. We believe Mr. Heles’s executive and management experience
well qualify him to serve on the Board.
Suellen Rodeffer Garner, 56, Class II Director and Chairman of the Board, has served as a
director since our merger with First Capital Bank Holding Corporation on October 1, 2005. She served as
a director of First Capital Bank Holding Corporation from 1998 until the merger. Ms. Garner served as a
director of Barnett Bank from 1990 to 1998. In addition, Ms. Garner is a licensed orthodontist and has
been co-owner of Suellen Rodeffer and David Tod Garner D.D.S., P.A., since 1983. We believe Ms.
Garner’s previous service as director of a NYSE-listed financial institution well qualifies her to serve on
the Board.
Ladson F. Howell, 69, Class II Director and Vice-Chairman of the Board, has served as a director
of the Company since 1999. He is an attorney licensed to practice law in South Carolina and practiced
with Howell, Gibson & Hughes, PA, a law firm located in Beaufort, South Carolina, from 1968 until he
retired in January 2000. Mr. Howell received his law degree from the University of South Carolina Law
School in 1968 and a degree in Journalism from the University of South Carolina in 1965. He was a
former president of the Beaufort County Bar Association. He currently is a member of the South
Carolina State Bar Association and the board of trustees of Carteret Street United Methodist Church. We
believe Mr. Howell’s experience as an attorney and his civic involvement in the Beaufort, South Carolina
community well qualify him to serve on the Board.
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Class III Continuing Directors (Term Expiring 2014)
Robert B. Pinkerton, 71, Class III Director, has served as a director of the Company since 1999.
He has been president and chief executive officer of Athena Corporation, a manufacturer and fabricator of
custom products for the construction industry, since 1990. Prior to that, he was president and chief
executive officer of Blackstone Corporation (now part of Valeo), a multinational original equipment
manufacturer of automotive engine cooling systems. Mr. Pinkerton is a principal in Village Renaissance,
Inc., a developer in Beaufort and Port Royal, South Carolina. He holds a law degree, two engineering
degrees, and is a graduate of the SCBA Bank Directors College. He served as chairman of the City of
Beaufort Redevelopment Commission 2004-2010, is senior warden of St. Mark’s Episcopal Church, the
treasurer of the William Keyserling for Mayor Campaign, is on the board of directors of the Episcopal
Forum of South Carolina, and is a trustee of the Diocese of the Episcopal Church in South Carolina. We
believe Mr. Pinkerton’s long and varied career, including his service as president and chief executive
officer of a large manufacturing company, well qualify him to serve on the Board.
Edward Wilson, 61, Class III Director, has served as a director since our merger with First Capital
Bank Holding Corporation on October 1, 2005. He served as a director of First Capital Bank Holding
Corporation from 1998 until the merger. Mr. Wilson is a licensed insurance agent. He is part-owner and
has served as an officer of several Florida insurance agencies comprising Morrow Insurance Group, Inc.,
including agencies located in Madison (secretary and treasurer since 1985), Fernandina Beach (president
since 1987), and Yulee (president since 1998). Mr. Wilson also participates in real estate investments.
He is district chairman for the Boy Scouts of America. We believe Mr. Wilson’s extensive experience in
the field of insurance well qualifies him to serve on the Board.
Marshall E. Wood, 67, Class III Director, was elected to the Board of Directors in May 2007. He
served as a director of First Capital Bank Holding Corporation from 1998 until its merger with the
Company on October 1, 2005. Mr. Wood served as a director of Barnett Bank from 1981 to 1997 and its
successor, Nations Bank (Jacksonville), until May 1998. He graduated from the University of Georgia in
1968 with a degree in Business Administration and from the University of Tennessee with a Juris Doctor
degree in 1972. He is engaged in the practice of law in Fernandina Beach, Florida. Mr. Wood serves as a
director of Baptist Medical Center-Nassau. We believe Mr. Wood’s previous long and varied career,
including his service as a director of a NYSE-listed financial institution, well qualify him to serve on the
Board.
Class I Continuing Directors (Term Expiring 2015)
Christina H. Bryan, 67, Class I Director, has served as a director since our merger with First
Capital Bank Holding Corporation on October 1, 2005. She served as a director of First Capital Bank
Holding Corporation from 1998 until the merger. She is on the board of Baptist Medical Center-Nassau,
trustee of the YMCA of Florida’s First Coast, and past president of Gator Boosters for the University of
Florida. Ms. Bryan is membership secretary of Memorial United Methodist Church and serves on its
Staff Parrish Committee. We believe Ms. Bryan’s long and varied career and her breadth of civic
involvement well qualify her to serve on the Board.
James W. Holden, Jr., 53, Class I Director, has served as a director of the Company since 1999.
He is a licensed veterinarian in South Carolina, North Carolina and Georgia, and has been practicing
veterinary medicine in Beaufort, South Carolina since 1986. He received his degree in Veterinary
Medicine from the University of Georgia in 1983 and a degree in Pre-Veterinary Medicine from Clemson
University in 1979. He is a member of the Rotary Club of Beaufort where he has served as director,
president, vice president, and secretary. Dr. Holden has served on the board of directors of South
Carolina Select Laboratories, LLC, a reference laboratory serving primarily rural physicians and hospitals
across the state of South Carolina, since 2007 and is past chairman of the board of directors of
Lowcountry Estuarium, a non-profit marine science educational organization. He is a 2003 graduate of
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the SCBA Bank Directors College. We believe Dr. Holden’s business experience and his knowledge of
our market areas well qualify him to serve on the Board.
James C. Key, 73, Class I Director, has served as a director of the Company since 1999. He is the
managing partner of Shenandoah Group, LLP, a firm providing governance, risk management, and
compliance (GRC) solutions for a wide variety of clients in business, government, education, and
multilaterals since 1997. Mr. Key served as director-internal audit for North America and Asia Pacific at
IBM Corporation in Armonk, New York, until he retired in 1997. He is a Certified Internal Auditor and
holds a Certification in Risk Management Assurance. Additionally, Mr. Key has been active in The
Institute of Internal Auditors since 1991. He graduated from Syracuse University with a degree in Liberal
Studies and has completed graduate work at the Maxwell School of Citizenship and Public Affairs,
Syracuse University. Mr. Key is immediate past president of the Southeast District of the Unitarian
Universalist Association (UUA) of Congregations in Charlotte, North Carolina and also chairs the audit
committee of the board of trustees of the National UUA organization. We believe Mr. Key’s extensive
career in risk management and compliance, in addition to his extensive audit experience, well qualify him
to serve on the Board.
Michael G. Sanchez, 63, Class I Director, has served as Chief Executive Officer of Coastal
Banking Company since August 27, 2007. Mr. Sanchez served as President of Coastal Banking
Company from the merger with First Capital Bank Holding Corporation on October 1, 2005 until
August 27, 2007 and has served as a director of Coastal Banking Company since October 1, 2005. He
served as director, president, and chief executive officer of First Capital Bank Holding Corporation from
1998 until the merger. Mr. Sanchez served as group president of lending for Tucker Federal Bank,
Tucker, Georgia, from 1997 to 1998. He also served as president, chief executive officer, and director of
Premier Bank, Acworth, Georgia, from 1995 to 1996 and for Summerville National Bank, Summerville,
South Carolina, from 1993 to 1995. Mr. Sanchez has over 35 years of experience in the banking industry.
We believe Mr. Sanchez’s long banking career well qualifies him to serve on the Board.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table shows for each executive officer of Coastal: (a) his name, (b) his age at
December 31, 2012; (c) how long he has been an officer of Coastal; and (d) his positions with Coastal and
CBC National Bank:
Name (Age)

Position with Coastal Banking
Company and CBC National Bank

Officer Since

Michael G. Sanchez (63)

2005

President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and CBC National Bank

Paul R. Garrigues (57)

2007

Chief Financial Officer of the Company and
CBC National Bank

William Gary Horn (63)

2008

President, Banking Division and Executive
Vice President of CBC National Bank

Charles K. Wagner (42)

2011

Executive Vice President, Mortgage
Division, CBC National Bank

Paul R. Garrigues, 57, has served as the Chief Financial Officer of Coastal Banking Company
and CBC National Bank since September 10, 2007. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Garrigues served
as senior vice president of secondary marketing at Seacoast National Bank in Stuart, Florida from June
2006 to September 2007. Mr. Garrigues served as senior vice president and chief financial officer of Big
Lake National Bank in Okeechobee, Florida from February 2005 to June 2006, when Seacoast National
Bank acquired Big Lake National Bank. From October 2002 to January 2005, Mr. Garrigues served as
the chief accounting officer of Lydian Trust Company, a financial services company in Palm Beach
Gardens, Florida. Mr. Garrigues served as a director of Transnational Financial Corporation from 2002 to
2007. Mr. Garrigues earned a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from the University of Southern
California. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
William Gary Horn, 63, currently serves as President, Banking Division, for CBC National Bank.
He joined CBC National Bank in January 2002 as Executive Vice President and Senior Credit Officer.
Prior to joining CBC National Bank, Mr. Horn served as president and chief executive officer of Beach
First National Bank in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. He also served as executive vice president and
senior credit officer for Summerville National Bank in Summerville, South Carolina from 1993 to 1995.
Mr. Horn has over 30 years of experience in the banking industry.
Charles K. Wagner, 42, has served as Executive Vice President, Mortgage Division, for CBC
National Bank since September 2011 and as Senior Vice President of Mortgage Banking for CBC
National Bank since September 2007. Prior to joining the Company, he was the manager of mortgage
banking at First Horizon National Corporation. He served as executive director of American Mortgage
Express Corporation from February 2004 through June 2007. Mr. Wagner earned a bachelor’s degree
from the University of Georgia. He has 20 years of experience in the financial services industry.
Biographical information for Mr. Sanchez is included above under the heading “Class I
Continuing Directors (Term Expiring 2015).”
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PROPOSAL II:
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTM ENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Audit Committee has selected, and the Board has approved, Mauldin & Jenkins, Certified
Public Accountants, LLC, an independent registered public accounting firm, to serve as the independent
registered public accounting firm for the Company for the year ending December 31, 2013, subject to
ratification by the shareholders. Mauldin & Jenkins also served as the independent auditors for the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2012. Although shareholder ratification of our independent
auditors is not required by our Bylaws or otherwise, we are submitting the selection of Mauldin & Jenkins
to shareholders for ratification to permit shareholders to participate in this important corporate decision.
If Mauldin & Jenkins declines to act or otherwise becomes incapable of acting, or if appointment is
otherwise discontinued, the Audit Committee will appoint another independent registered public
accounting firm. A representative of Mauldin & Jenkins is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting
and will be given an opportunity to make a statement on behalf of the firm or to respond to appropriate
questions from shareholders.
The ratification of Mauldin & Jenkins as independent auditors of the Company for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2013 requires the approval by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shareholders
present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting.
THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE
RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF MAULDIN & JENKINS AS COASTAL
BANKING COMPANY’S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR
THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013.

RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
We have banking and other transactions in the ordinary course of business with our directors and
officers and the bank and their affiliates. It is our policy that these transactions are on substantially the
same terms (including price, or interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with unrelated parties. We do not expect these transactions to involve more than the normal
risk of collectability nor present other unfavorable features to the Company or CBC National Bank.
Loans to individual directors and officers must also comply with CBC National Bank’s lending policies
and statutory lending limits, and directors with a personal interest in any loan application are excluded
from the consideration of that loan application. The Company intends for all of its transactions with its
affiliates to be on terms no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained from an unaffiliated
third party and to be approved by a majority of disinterested directors.
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Coastal selected the accounting firm of Mauldin & Jenkins to serve as principal accountant for
Coastal for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. A representative of the firm is expected to be
present at the meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so
and will be available to respond to appropriate questions from shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS
Any shareholder proposal to be made at an Annual Meeting must comply with Coastal’s Bylaws.
Proposals must be delivered to the Secretary of the Company no less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior
to the date of the 2014 Annual Meeting date; provided, however, that if less than 31 days’ notice of the
meeting is given to shareholders, the notice must be delivered within ten (10) days following the day on
which notice of the meeting was mailed to shareholders. Pursuant to our Bylaws, the notice must set
forth for each proposal:
(1)

a description of the business desired to be brought before the Annual Meeting (including
the specific proposal(s) to be presented) and the reasons for conducting such business at
the Annual Meeting;

(2)

the name and record address of the shareholder proposing such business;

(3)

the class and number of shares of the Company that are owned of record, and the class
and number of shares of the Company that are held beneficially, but not held of record,
by the shareholder as of the record date for the meeting if such date has been made
publicly available, or as of a date within ten (10) days of the effective date of the notice
by the shareholder if the record date has not been made publicly available; and

(4)

any interest of the shareholder in such business.

If a shareholder attempts to bring business before the Annual Meeting without complying with
these provisions, the Chairman may declare that the matter was not properly brought before the meeting
and the business will not be transacted; provided, however, that the Chairman of the meeting, for good
cause shown and with proper regard for the orderly conduct of business, may waive the Bylaw notice
provisions. Proxies solicited by the management of the Company will confer discretionary authority upon
the management of the Company to vote upon any shareholder proposal contained in a shareholder notice
received by the Company after the Bylaw notice deadline.
Additionally, in accordance with our Bylaws, a shareholder may nominate persons for election as
directors in opposition of the Company’s nominees. Shareholders who wish to make a director
nomination must deliver nominations in writing to the Secretary of the Company no later than 90 days in
advance of the Annual Meeting (typically held after April 1) or seven days after Notice of a Special
Meeting is given to shareholders. Each notice must set forth:
•

•

•

•

the name and address of the shareholder who intends to make the nomination and of the
person or persons to be nominated;
a representation that the shareholder is a holder of record of stock of the Company entitled to
vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate
the person or persons specified in the notice;
a description of all arrangements or understandings between the shareholder and each
nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which
the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder;
such other information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would be
required to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities
and Exchange Commission had the nominee been nominated or intended to be nominated by
the Board of Directors; and
9

•

the consent of each nominee to serve as a director of the Company, if so elected.

The chairman of the meeting may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made
in compliance with the foregoing procedure. Additionally, any shareholder nominee will be required to
adhere to any required regulatory notice or approval prior to the date of the meeting.
Shareholder Communications
Shareholders wishing to communicate with the Board of Directors or with a particular director
may do so in writing addressed to the Board, or to the particular director, and by sending it to the
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal office at 36 Sea Island Parkway, Beaufort, South
Carolina 29907. The Secretary will promptly forward such communications to the applicable director or
to the Chairman of the Board for consideration at the next scheduled meeting.
OTHER MATTERS
The Board of Directors of Coastal knows of no other matters that may be brought before the
meeting. If, however, any matters other than the election of directors or matters related to the election or
the ratification of the appointment of our independent auditors of should properly come before the
meeting, votes will be cast pursuant to the proxies in accordance with the best judgment of the
proxyholders.
If you cannot be present in person at the meeting, please complete, sign, date and return the
enclosed proxy to us promptly in the postage-paid envelope provided.
April 1, 2013
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Management’s Additional Commentary related to Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General
The corporate history of Coastal
www.coastalbanking.com/history.html

Banking

Company,

Inc.

(the

“Company”)

is

available

at

On May 2, 2012 the Company filed a Form 15-12G with the Securities and Exchange Commission to terminate the
registration of its common stock under Section 12(G) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thereby suspend
its duty to file reports with the SEC under Sections 13 and 15(D) of the Act. As a result, the Form 10Q filed for the
period ended March 31, 2012 was the final financial report filed with the SEC by the Company. Management
intends to continue to prepare and publish quarterly and annual financial reports with similar information as required
in filings with the SEC to ensure that investors have access to timely, meaningful information related to the
Company’s results. These financial reports will be published on the Company’s web site at intervals consistent with
the comparable SEC filing deadlines.
The following discussion describes our results of operations for 2012 as compared to 2011 and also analyzes our
financial condition as of December 31, 2012 as compared to December 31, 2011. Like most community banks, we
derive most of our income from interest we receive on our loans and investments. Our primary source of funds for
making these loans and investments is our deposits, on which we pay interest. Consequently, one of the key
measures of our success is our amount of net interest income, or the difference between the income on our interestearning assets, such as loans and investments, and the expense on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits.
Another key measure is the spread between the yield we earn on these interest-earning assets and the rate we pay on
our interest-bearing liabilities.
We have included a number of tables to assist in our description of these measures. For example, the “Average
Balances” table shows the average balance during 2012 and 2011 of each category of our assets and liabilities, as
well as the yield we earned or the rate we paid with respect to each category. A review of this table shows that our
loans typically provide higher interest yields than do other types of interest earning assets, which is why we intend
to continue to direct a substantial percentage of our earning assets into our loan portfolio. Similarly, the
“Volume/Rate Analysis” table helps demonstrate the impact of changing interest rates and changing volume of
assets and liabilities during the years shown. We also track the sensitivity of our various categories of assets and
liabilities to changes in interest rates, and to help demonstrate this sensitivity we have included a “Sensitivity
Analysis Table.” In addition, we have included a number of tables in the notes to the audited consolidated financial
statements, which provide details about our investment securities, our loans, and our deposits.
Of course, there are risks inherent in all loans, so we maintain an allowance for loan losses to absorb possible losses
on existing loans that may become uncollectible. We establish and maintain this allowance by charging a provision
for loan losses against our operating earnings. In the following section we have included a detailed discussion of this
process, as well as several tables describing our allowance for loan losses. See comments in the section entitled
“Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses.”
In addition to earning interest on our loans and investments, we earn income through fees, gains on sales of loans
and marketable securities, cash surrender value of life insurance, and other service charges to our customers. We
describe the various components of this noninterest income, as well as our noninterest expense, in the following
discussion.
The following discussion and analysis also identifies significant factors that have affected our financial position and
operating results during the periods included in the accompanying financial statements. We encourage you to read
this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the financial statements and the related notes and the other statistical
information also included in this report.
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Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains “forward-looking statements” relating to, without limitation, future economic performance,
plans and objectives of management for future operations, and projections of revenues and other financial items that
are based on the beliefs of management, as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to
management. The words “may,” “will,” “anticipate,” “should,” “would,” “believe,” “contemplate,” “expect,”
“estimate,” “continue,” “may,” and “intend,” as well as other similar words and expressions of the future, are
intended to identify forward-looking statements.
Results of Operations
Overview
Net income for 2012 was $1,884,000 or $0.51 per basic common share after adjusting for preferred stock dividends,
compared to net income of $357,000, or a loss of $0.08 per basic common share in 2011. In total, our operating
results depend to a large degree on net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income received
from our investments, such as loans, investment securities, and federal funds sold, and interest expense, paid on
deposit liabilities and other borrowings. Net interest income was $12,884,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012
compared to net interest income of $12,647,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, a year over year increase of
1.9%.
The provision for loan losses in 2012 was $4,084,000 compared to $2,865,000 in 2011. The provision for loan losses
remains elevated due largely to weakness in our real estate markets, including the residential and commercial
construction industries. The Bank has a concentration in residential single-family construction loans and residential
development loans in Beaufort, South Carolina; Savannah, Georgia; and in northeast Florida, principally Nassau,
Duval, and St. Johns Counties. These loan types are typically repaid as the completed lots or homes are sold;
however, the nationwide deterioration in the housing market has affected our local markets and, as a result, caused
our sources of repayment to slow and accelerated the devaluation of the underlying collateral securing the loans. The
provision for loan losses reflects the amount calculated by our allowance for loan losses methodology, which takes
into account deteriorating economic conditions and the underlying collateral value securing many of our loans. Of
the $4,084,000 provision expense for 2012, 38% of provision expense was related to collateral properties in Florida,
58% was related to collateral properties in South Carolina, and 4% was related to collateral properties in Georgia.
Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2012 totaled $48,763,000, representing a $28,101,000 or 136%
increase from the year ended December 31, 2011. This increase was associated with an increase in mortgage
banking income of $28,416,000 and an increase in gain on sale of securities of $149,000, partially offset by a
decrease in SBA loan income of $453,000. The dramatic increase to mortgage banking income reflects the full year
impact of loan production from the new National Retail Group in 2012 versus a partial year impact in 2011, and a
general increase in national lending activity levels.
Noninterest expenses in 2012 were $54,122,000, which represents a $23,986,000 increase compared to the 2011
amounts. The largest contributor to this increase was salaries and benefits, which increased by $17,490,000 due to
staffing additions at the national retail mortgage banking branches as well as increased commission and incentive
costs from residential mortgage banking and SBA lending activity. Also contributing to the increase was an
increase in advertising expense of $3,642,000 related to marketing costs for new loan leads purchased for the new
retail mortgage offices. Direct mortgage loan expense increased $1,889,000 during 2012, and occupancy expense
increased $713,000 during 2012, both related to the national retail mortgage expansion. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease of $704,000 in costs associated with other real estate owned. The Company’s
efficiency ratio, which is a measure of total noninterest expenses as a percentage of net interest income and
noninterest income, decreased to 87.79% in 2012 from 90.47% in 2011 due in large part to the previously described
increases in noninterest income.

2

In 2012, we recognized income tax expense of $1,557,000 compared to income tax benefit of $49,000 in 2011. Our
effective tax rate was 45.3% in 2012 and (16.0%) in 2011. The fluctuation in effective tax rates reflects the impact
of permanent book-to-tax differences from income on bank owned life insurance and municipal securities, as well as
non-tax deductible losses.
Net Interest Income
For the year ended December 31, 2012, net interest income totaled $12,884,000, as compared to $12,647,000 for the
same period in 2011, an improvement of $237,000 or 1.9% on a year over year basis. Interest income from loans,
including fees, decreased $203,000 to $16,336,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The average balance of
loans was $356,720,000 in 2012 compared to $345,025,000 in 2011. The weighted average rate earned on loans was
4.58% for 2012 compared to 4.79% in 2011. Interest income from securities decreased $656,000 on a tax equivalent
basis. The average balance of investments was $22,719,000 in 2012 compared to $36,379,000 in 2011. The
weighted average rate earned on investments was 3.35% for 2012 compared to 3.90% in 2011. This decrease in
interest income was offset by decreased interest expense, which totaled $4,224,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to $5,233,000 in 2011. The net interest margin realized on earning assets and the interest rate spread
were 3.31% and 3.23%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2012. For the year ended December 31,
2011, the net interest margin was 3.30% and the interest rate spread was 3.20%. Yields on interest earning assets
decreased during the year by 27 basis points compared to a decrease in rates on interest bearing liabilities of 30 basis
points during the year.
Average Balances and Interest Rates
The table below shows the average balance outstanding for each category of interest-earning assets and interestbearing liabilities for 2012, 2011 and 2010, and the average rate of interest earned or paid thereon. Average balances
have been derived from the daily balances throughout the period indicated. Non-accrual loans and the interest
income recorded on these loans, if any, are included in the yield calculation for loans in all periods reported.
Amounts are presented on a tax equivalent basis.

(In thousands)
Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Loans (including loan fees)
Taxable investments
Tax-free investments
Interest-bearing deposits in
other banks
Federal funds sold
Total interest-earning assets
Other noninterest earning assets
Total assets
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Interest-bearing demand and
savings deposits
Time deposits
Other borrowings
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Other noninterest bearing liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity
Excess of interest-earning assets
over interest bearing liabilities
Ratio of interest-earning assets to
interest-bearing liabilities
Tax equivalent adjustment
Net interest income
Net interest spread
Net interest margin

Average
Balance

2012
Interest

$ 356,720
21,627
1,092

$ 16,336
711
50

10,497
135
390,071
32,885
$ 422,956

28
<1
17,125

$ 122,363
204,927
35,570
362,860
26,308
33,788

$

744
2,425
1,055
4,224

For the Years Ended December 31,
2011
Average
Yield/
Yield/ Average
Balance
Rate
Rate
Balance
Interest
4.58% $ 345,025
3.29%
32,069
4.58%
4,310
0.27%
0.30%
4.39%

$ 16,539
1,155
262

4,019
232
385,655
29,697
$ 415,352

0.61% $ 120,555
1.18%
192,285
2.97%
46,425
1.16%
359,265
23,003
33,084

13
<1
17,969

$

976
2,827
1,430
5,233

4.79% $ 344,622
3.60%
47,870
6.08%
6,026
0.32%
0.17%
4.66%

0.81% $ 121,426
1.47%
216,298
3.08%
39,583
1.46%
377,307
24,098
35,469

$ 415,352

$ 436,874

$

$

$

107%

(17)
$ 12,884

26,390
107%

3.23%
3.31%

3

(89)
$ 12,647

Yield/
Rate

$ 17,261
1,882
352

5.01%
3.93%
5.84%

13
4
19,512

0.28%
0.20%
4.82%

1,332
4,441
1,673
7,446

1.10%
2.05%
4.23%
1.97%

$

27,844
107%

3.20%
3.30%

Interest

4,624
2,009
405,151
31,723
$ 436,874

$ 422,956
27,211

2010

(120)
$ 11,946

2.84%
2.98%

Volume/Rate Analysis
Net interest income can also be analyzed in terms of the impact of changing rates and changing volume. The
following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected our interest income and interest expense during the periods
indicated. The effect of a change in average balance has been determined by applying the average rate in the earlier
year to the change in average balance in the later year, as compared with the earlier year. The effect of a change in
the average rate has been determined by applying the average balance in the earlier year to the change in the average
rate in the later year, as compared with the earlier year.

(In thousands)

Interest income on:
Loans (including loan fees)
$
Taxable investments
Non-taxable investments
Interest bearing deposits in other banks
Federal funds sold
Total interest income (tax equivalent basis)
Interest expense on:
Interest-bearing demand and savings deposits
Time deposits
Other borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest income (tax equivalent basis)
$

2012 Compared to 2011
Increase (decrease)
due to changes in
Volume
Rate
Net Change

550 $
(350)
(159)
18
(1)
58

(753) $
(94)
(53)
(3)
1
(902 )

(203) $
(444)
(212)
15
—
(844 )

14
177
(324)
(133)
191 $

(246)
(579)
(51)
(876)
(26) $

(232)
(402)
(375)
(1,009)
165 $

2011 Compared to 2010
Increase (decrease)
due to changes in
Volume
Rate
Net Change

20 $
(580)
(104)
(2)
(3)
(669 )

(742) $ (722)
(147)
(727)
14
(90)
2
—
(1)
(4)
(874 ) (1,543 )

(9)
(347)
(356)
(454)
(1,160)
(1,614)
259
(502)
(243)
(204)
(2,009)
(2,213)
(465) $ 1,135 $
670

Interest Rate Sensitivity and Asset Liability Management
Interest rate sensitivity measures the timing and magnitude of the repricing of assets compared with the repricing of
liabilities and is an important part of asset/liability management of a financial institution. The objective of interest
rate sensitivity management is to generate stable growth in net interest income, and to manage the risks associated
with interest rate movements. Management constantly reviews interest rate risk exposure under various interest rate
scenarios so that adjustments in interest rate sensitivity can be made on a timely basis. Since the assets and
liabilities of the Company are primarily monetary in nature (receivable or payable in fixed, determinable amounts),
the performance of the Company is affected more by changes in interest rates than by inflation. Interest rates
generally increase as the rate of inflation increases, but the magnitude of the change in rates may not be the same.
Net interest income is the primary component of net income for financial institutions. Net interest income is
affected by the timing and magnitude of repricing of as well as the mix of interest sensitive and noninterest sensitive
assets and liabilities. “Gap” is a static measurement of the difference between the contractual maturities or repricing
dates of interest sensitive assets and interest sensitive liabilities for a given time period. This projected Gap
exposure is expressed as a ratio of interest sensitive assets to interest sensitive liabilities in an attempt to predict the
behavior of the Company’s net interest income in general terms during periods of movement in interest rates. In
general, if the Company is asset sensitive the projected Gap exposure will be 1.0 or higher, indicating that more of
its interest sensitive assets are expected to reprice than its interest sensitive liabilities over the same period. By
example, a projected Gap ratio of 1.20 indicates that $1.20 of interest sensitive assets are expected to reprice for
every $1.00 of interest sensitive liabilities expected to reprice over a given time period. In a rising interest rate
environment, assets repricing more quickly are expected to enhance net interest income. Alternatively, decreasing
interest rates would be expected to have the opposite effect on net interest income since assets would theoretically
be repricing at lower interest rates more quickly than interest sensitive liabilities. Although it can be used as a
general predictor, Gap as a predictor of movements in net interest income has limitations due to the static nature of
its definition and due to its inherent assumption that all assets and liabilities will reprice immediately and fully at the
contractually designated time.
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The following table summarizes the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at
December 31, 2012, that are expected to mature, prepay, or reprice in each of the future time periods shown. Except
as stated below, the amount of assets or liabilities that mature or reprice during a particular period was determined in
accordance with the contractual terms of the asset or liability. Adjustable rate loans are included in the period in
which interest rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than in the period in which they are due, and fixed-rate loans
and mortgage-backed securities are included in the periods in which they are anticipated to be repaid based on
scheduled maturities. The Bank’s savings accounts and interest-bearing demand accounts (NOW and money market
deposit accounts) that are not contractually tied to an adjusting index are grouped into categories based on the
Company’s historical repricing practices. Money market accounts which are contractually tied to repricing indexes
reprice monthly and are grouped in the three month or less category. Many of these money market accounts are tied
to a Treasury index.
At December 31, 2012
Maturing or Repricing in
(In thousands)

Interest-earning assets:
Federal funds sold
$
Deposits in other banks
Investment securities
Loans held for sale and loan sales
receivable
Loans
Total interest-earning assets
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Savings and demand deposits
Time deposits
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase
FHLB advances
Junior subordinated debentures
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Interest sensitive difference per period $
Cumulative interest sensitivity
difference
$
Cumulative difference to total interestearning assets

3 Months
or Less

75
2,319
1,088

4 Months to
12 Months

$

—
—
4,734

1 to 5
Years

$

—
—
13,558

Over 5
Years

$

Total

—
—
4,936

$

75
2,319
24,316

171,308
118,463
293,253

—
23,838
28,572

—
72,559
86,117

—
27,578
32,514

171,308
242,438
440,456

3,322
34,995

10,324
104,459

53,319
52,515

55,686
78

122,651
192,047

6,055
66,428
7,217
118,017
175,236

$

—
—
—
114,783
(86,211)

$

—
15,000
—
120,834
(34,717)

$

—
—
—
55,764
(23,250)

6,055
81,428
7,217
409,398
31,058

175,236

$

89,025

$

54,308

$

31,058

39.8%

20.2%

12.3%

$

7.1%

At December 31, 2012, the Company, as measured by Gap, and adjusted for its expectations of changes in interest
bearing categories that might not move completely in tandem with changing interest rates, is asset sensitive with a
cumulative projected Gap ratio of 2.48 over a three month period and a cumulative projected Gap ratio of 1.38 over
a one year period. At December 31, 2012, the Company had $175,236,000 more assets than liabilities repricing or
maturing within three months, and $89,025,000 more assets than liabilities repricing over a one-year time period.
Management has several tools available to it to evaluate and affect interest rate risk, including deposit pricing
policies and changes in the mix of various types of assets and liabilities. The Company also forecasts its sensitivity
to interest rate changes not less than quarterly using modeling software.
Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although
certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may reflect changes in market
interest rates differently. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages, have features that restrict
changes in interest rates, both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. Other factors which may affect the
assumptions made in the table include options to call a security or borrowing, pre-payment rates, early withdrawal
levels, and the ability of borrowers to service their debt. Management uses modeling techniques which attempt to
quantify the impacts of interest rates on margin changes. These modeling techniques reflect the effects of these cited
shortcomings including the effects of maturity changes that occur as a result of changes in interest rates. These
modeling tools indicate that net interest margin would be slightly negatively impacted at twelve months given a 1%
decrease in interest rates, and positively impacted at twelve months given a 1% increase in interest rates.
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Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses
There are risks inherent in making all loans, including risks with respect to the period of time over which loans may
be repaid, risks resulting from changes in economic and industry conditions, risks inherent in dealing with individual
borrowers, and, in the case of a collateralized loan, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value of the
collateral. We establish and maintain an allowance for loan losses based on a number of qualitative factors
including, among other things, historical experience, evaluation of economic conditions, regular reviews of
delinquencies and loan portfolio quality and a number of assumptions about future events, which we believe to be
reasonable, but which may not prove to be accurate. We believe that changes in economic and industry conditions
capture the impact of general declines in the value of collateral property, and in this way our qualitative factors
reflect general declines in collateral values.
The provision for loan losses is the periodic charge to operating earnings that management believes is necessary to
maintain the allowance for possible loan losses at an adequate level. The amounts of these periodic charges are
based on management’s analysis of the potential risk in the loan portfolio. This analysis includes, among other
things, evaluation of the trends in key loan portfolio metrics as follows:

(In thousands)

December
31,
2012

September
30,
2012

June 30,
2012

March 31,
2012

December
31,
2011

September
30
2011

June 30,
2011

March 31,
2011

Portfolio loans, gross

$ 242,437 $ 238,824 $ 239,650 $ 249,075 $ 254,667 $ 260,789 $ 259,561 $ 263,596

Loans past due > 30 days
and still accruing interest

$

1,442 $

$

9,439 $
3.90%

14,357 $ 12,851 $ 13,527 $ 15,937 $ 22,338 $ 25,399 $ 20,678
6.02%
5.37%
5.43%
6.26%
8.57%
9.79%
7.84%

$

1,807 $
0.75%

923 $ 1,470 $
0.39%
0.62%

Loans on nonaccrual
(as a % of loans, gross)
Net loan charge offs
(recoveries)
(as a % of loans, gross)

1,243 $

4,346 $

1,237 $

426 $
0.17%

1,142 $

1,713 $
0.67%

844 $

846 $
0.32%

1,950 $

2,063

685 $
407
0.26%
0.15%

Portfolio loans, gross addresses the impact on the provision for loan losses from changes in the size and
composition of our loan portfolio. In the past we applied various reserve factors to our portfolio based on the riskrated categories of loans because we had relatively little charge off activity prior to the quarter ended December 31,
2008. As a result of increasing charge off activity over the past four years, we now rely more on historical levels
and trends to establish various reserve percentages based on the relative inherent risk for a particular loan type and
grade. The inherent risk is established based on peer group data, information from regulatory agencies, the
experience of the Bank’s lending officers, and recent trends in portfolio losses. These reserve factors are
continuously evaluated and subject to change depending on trends in national and local economic conditions, the
depth of experience of the Bank’s lenders, delinquency trends and other factors. As our portfolio size has decreased
over the last two years, there has been a shift in composition from higher risk rated real estate construction loans to
comparably lower risk rated owner occupied residential real estate loans.
Loans past due greater than 30 days and still accruing interest has proven to be a useful leading indicator of
directional trends in future loan losses. As the level of this metric rises, expectations are for a comparable increase in
loans moving into a nonaccrual status and ultimately foreclosure resulting in increased losses. This pattern has been
observed in the past where increases in loans past due greater than 30 days and still accruing are followed in future
quarters with the same directional changes in the level of loans on nonaccrual. The level of loans past due greater
than 30 days and still accruing interest declined for four consecutive quarters to $844,000 at September 30, 2011, the
lowest level reported in over four years, but increased to $4,346,000 at June 30, 2012, before decreasing to
$1,442,000 at December 31, 2012. Management intends to carefully monitor past due loans and work aggressively
to manage loan delinquency levels. While the long term trend in credit quality over the last four years has
improved, we continue to experience ups and downs throughout the process. It is likely that the weakening loan
quality that began in late 2008 will continue to be an area of concern in future periods.

6

Loans on nonaccrual has been another leading indicator of potential future losses from loans. We typically place
loans on nonaccrual status when they become 90 days past due. In addition to the interest lost when a loan is placed
on nonaccrual status, there is an increased probability of a loan on nonaccrual moving into foreclosure with a
potential loss outcome. Although it is not shown in the table above, the level of loans on nonaccrual peaked at
$25,925,000 at June 30, 2009 and then declined by 50% over the following three quarters to $12,992,000 at March
31, 2010. From that March 31, 2010 low point, loans on nonaccrual gradually increased again to peak at
$25,399,000 in mid-2011 which was very near the mid-2009 high point. Once again we saw a downward trend over
the following four quarters. The December 31, 2012 level of $9,439,000 is the lowest level of nonaccrual loans
since June 30, 2008. While management is encouraged by the improvement in nonaccrual loans, we intend to
remain vigilant in our loan monitoring and loss mitigation efforts.
Net loan charge offs or recoveries reflect our practice of charging recognized losses to the allowance and adding
subsequent recoveries back to the allowance. During the three months ended December 31, 2012, we recorded
charge offs net of recoveries of $1,807,000. This amount represented an increase of $884,000, or 96%, from the
$923,000 in net charge offs recorded during the prior quarter ended September 30, 2012, and an increase of $94,000,
or 5% from the $1,713,000 net charge offs during the same quarter in the prior year.
Prior to the fourth fiscal quarter of 2008, we had very little charge off activity and therefore, had limited historical
information upon which to base past estimates. Accordingly, we continue to assess the implications of trends in
recent charge off activity on potential future losses. The recent volatility in the level of quarterly net loan charge offs
or recoveries makes it difficult to identify a specific trend or establish reliable future expectations. As a result, there
can be no assurance that charge offs of loans in future periods will not increase or exceed the allowance for loan
losses as estimated at any point in time or that provisions for loan losses will not be significant to a particular
accounting period. Thus, there is a risk that substantial additional increases in the allowance for loan losses could be
required, which would result in a decrease in our net income and possibly our capital.
In addition to considering the metrics described above, we evaluate the collectability of individual loans, the balance
of impaired loans, economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the amount and quality of
collateral securing the loans and a review of specific problem loans. Based on this process and as shown below, the
provision charged to expense was $957,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2012, as compared to
$1,150,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2011. On a consecutive quarter basis, this provision level was
$150,000, or 19%, higher than the $807,000 provision charged to expense during the quarter ended September 30,
2012.

(In thousands)

December
31,
2012

September
30,
2012

Provision during quarter
ended

$

957 $

807 $

Provision added in excess
of net charge-offs
$

(850) $

(116) $

June 30,
2012

Allowance for loan losses $ 4,679 $ 5,527 $
(as a % of loans, gross)
1.93%
2.32%

March 31,
2012

December
31,
September 30
2011
2011

1,302 $ 1,017 $ 1,150 $

June 30,
2011

March 31,
2011

703 $

497 $

515

(563) $

(143) $

(188) $

108

5,645 $ 5,813 $ 5,222 $
2.36% 2.33%
2.05%

5,785 $
2.22%

(168) $

591 $

5,928 $ 6,116
2.28%
2.32%

The difference between the amount of the provision for loan losses and net loan charge offs will result in expansion
or shrinkage to the level of the allowance for loan losses. As shown above, during the three months ended December
31, 2012 the current provision for loan losses of $957,000 was less than net charge offs against the allowance of
$1,807,000 by $850,000. The result was a decrease to the allowance for loan losses by $850,000 to a level of
$4,679,000, or 1.93% of gross loans outstanding at December 31, 2012, as compared to $5,529,000, or 2.32% of
gross loans outstanding at September 30, 2012.
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From a historical perspective, prior to 2008, while the level of loans on nonaccrual was relatively stable, the
allowance for loan losses was maintained in the range of 1.2% to 1.3% of the balance of gross loans. As we moved
into 2008 and experienced an increase in loans on nonaccrual, it was determined that an increase to the allowance
level was appropriate given the projected increased risk of loss, so the allowance was increased to a range of 1.4% to
1.6% during 2008. The weakening of the loan portfolio performance continued into 2009 with actual loss levels that
exceeded projections from earlier in 2008, resulting in the decision to increase the allowance level further, to the
range of 1.6% to 1.8% in early 2009. With nonaccrual loans reaching a peak in mid-2009, further analysis and
projections of potential loan losses in the Bank’s existing portfolio supported a further increase in the allowance
level to a range of 2.0% to 2.3% of gross loans outstanding, which has been sustained since that time. As we moved
into the final two quarters of 2012 we observed significant improvement in loan portfolio performance with many
key asset quality metrics improving to levels last reported during 2008. Based on these improving trends and
current projections of future potential loses, we believe it is appropriate to gradually reduce our target allowance
level to a range of 1.8% to 2.2% of gross loans outstanding. Management believes that the changes in the level of
the allowance for loan losses is directionally consistent with the trends observed in the various asset quality metrics
discussed above.
Management continues to carefully monitor past due and nonaccrual loans. Management acknowledges that future
asset quality results may vary from our estimates and expectations, resulting in negative asset quality metrics, which
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
Noninterest Income
Noninterest income was $48,763,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012, which was an increase of $28,101,000,
or 136%, from $20,662,000 earned during the year ended December 31, 2011. The largest factor in this year-overyear improvement occurred in mortgage banking income, which was $44,679,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012 compared to $16,263,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. This increase to mortgage banking income
was driven almost entirely by the results of the mortgage origination business headquartered in Atlanta, which is
discussed in further detail below.
SBA loan income decreased by 13% or $453,000 to $3,016,000 for 2012 compared to $3,469,000 during 2011.
Service charges on deposit accounts decreased by 23% or $92,000 to a level of $311,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Other service charges increased by 2% or $7,000 to a level of $310,000 for 2012.
During 2012, we recorded net gains of $141,000 on sales of securities available for sale, compared to net gains of
$33,000 during 2011. In addition, we recorded an other than temporary impairment loss on investment securities of
$42,000 during 2011.
Noninterest Expense
Total noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $54,122,000 as compared to $30,137,000 for
2011. The year-over-year increase in noninterest operating expense of $23,985,000 is due largely to increased costs
associated with higher mortgage lending volume and the expansion of the national retail mortgage division.
Mortgage division expenses, excluding mortgage division salaries and benefits, increased 125%, or $7,429,000, to
$13,358,000 during 2012 compared to $5,929,000 during 2011. Other real estate expenses decreased 17%, or
$704,000, to $3,399,000 during 2012 compared to $4,103,000 during 2011.
Salaries and benefits totaled $31,908,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $14,418,000 for the
same period a year ago, for an increase of $17,490,000, reflecting staffing increases and higher commissions in
mortgage banking and SBA lending. Excluding the mortgage banking division, the Company experienced an
increase in salaries and benefits of $680,000 or 11% during 2012 compared to 2011.
Advertising expense increased significantly in 2012 at $6,111,000, representing a 148% increase from the
$2,469,000 expensed in 2011. This $3,642,000 year-over-year increase was due solely to the addition of the retail
mortgage production offices, and reflects expenses related to generating residential real estate loan application leads
through various media such as print advertising, mass mailings, internet referrals, and telemarketing efforts.
Occupancy and equipment expense increased $712,000 to $2,548,000 for 2012 compared to $1,836,000 during
2011, also due to expansion in the mortgage banking division.
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Mortgage Banking Activities
In the third quarter of 2007, First National Bank of Nassau County opened a residential mortgage lending division
headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia to complement the existing retail residential mortgage lending activity conducted
through other branch locations. This division originates and funds residential mortgage loans submitted by mortgage
brokers, as well as loan applications submitted directly from borrowers, and then sells these mortgage loans in the
secondary market. Beginning in 2011 and continuing through 2012, we have expanded this division by opening
several retail residential loan production offices throughout the country. As of December 31, 2012, the mortgage
banking division operates ten retail residential loan production offices in California, Florida, Georgia, Kansas,
Maryland, New York, and Ohio. This lending channel subjects us to various risks, including credit, liquidity, and
interest rate risks. We reduce unwanted credit and liquidity risks by selling virtually all of the mortgage loans
originated through this division. From time to time, we may decide to hold loans originated through this division as
additions to our residential real estate loan portfolio. We determine whether the loans will be held in our portfolio or
sold in the secondary market at the time of origination. We may subsequently change our intent to hold loans in
portfolio and subsequently sell some or all of these loans from our portfolio as part of our corporate asset/liability
management strategy.
While credit and liquidity risks have historically been relatively low for mortgage banking activities, interest rate
risk can be substantial. Changes in interest rates will impact the value of mortgages held for sale (“MHFS”) as well
as the associated income and loss reflected in mortgage banking noninterest income, the income and expense
associated with instruments (economic hedges) used to hedge changes in the value of MHFS, and the value of
derivative loan commitments extended to mortgage applicants.
Interest rates impact the amount and timing of loan origination activity because consumer demand for new
mortgages and the level of refinancing activity are sensitive to changes in mortgage interest rates. Typically, a
decline in mortgage interest rates will lead to an increase in mortgage origination activity. Given the time it takes for
consumer behavior to fully react to interest rate changes, as well as the time required for processing a new
application, providing the commitment, and selling the loan, loan origination activity will lag behind interest rate
changes. The amount and timing of the impact on loan origination activity will depend on the magnitude, speed and
duration of the change in interest rates.
As part of our mortgage banking activities, we enter into commitments to fund residential mortgage loans by a
specified future date. A mortgage loan commitment is an interest rate lock that binds us to lend funds to a potential
borrower at a specified interest rate and within a specified period of time, generally up to 60 days after inception of
the rate lock, subject to the loan applicant satisfying the underwriting conditions required for approval of their loan
application. These loan commitments are derivative loan commitments and the loans that result upon exercise of the
loan commitments are held for sale. These derivative loan commitments are recognized at fair value in the balance
sheet with changes in fair value recorded as part of mortgage banking noninterest income. We record no value for
the loan commitment at inception. Subsequent to inception, however, we recognize the fair value of the derivative
loan commitment based upon (i) estimated changes in the fair value of the underlying loan that would result from
the exercise of that commitment and (ii) changes in the probability that the underlying loan will fund within the
terms of the commitment (referred to as a pull through rate). The value of the underlying loan is affected primarily
by changes in interest rates and the passage of time.
Outstanding derivative loan commitments expose us to the risk that the value of the loans underlying the
commitments might decline due to increases in mortgage interest rates from inception of the rate lock to the funding
of the loan. To effectively hedge this risk, we enter into forward sale contracts with secondary market investors to
sell the underlying loans by a future date at an agreed upon price. During 2008 and most of 2009 these forward sale
contracts were primarily on a “best efforts flow” structure. Forward sales contracts are entered into concurrently
with issuance of the derivative loan commitment and carry terms that match the terms of the underlying loan
commitments. As a result, these forward sales commitments will experience changes in fair value that will fully
offset the changes in fair value of the derivative loan commitments.
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In the later half of 2009, we expanded our loan sales strategy from primarily best efforts, flow delivery to add the
use of mandatory flow deliveries, mini bulk sales, and forward mortgage backed securities deliveries through
assignment of trade transactions. These alternative loan sales strategies resulted in improved execution and thereby
increased gain on sale of loans. These alternative sales strategies tend not to be as effective in hedging the interest
rate risk as the concurrent flow forward sales commitments; however, the improved execution on loan sales has
more than compensated for the slight increase in interest rate risk from using less effective hedging techniques.
The primary source of direct income generated by this division is the gain on sale of mortgage loans which was
$44,679,000 for 2012 compared to $16,263,000 during 2011. Attractive mortgage rates caused a surge in mortgage
loan refinancing during 2012, leading to above average volume at the mortgage banking division, and thus, above
average gains on sales. The direct noninterest expenses incurred by the division were $38,279,000 during 2012, an
increase of $24,239,000 over the 2011 expenses of $14,040,000. The largest contributor to this increase was in
salaries and benefits, which were $24,921,000 during 2012, compared to $8,111,000 during 2011, and largely reflect
the higher commissions and incentive compensation paid as a result of a combination of staffing additions and
increased volume of loan originations in 2012 as compared to 2011.
Beyond the impact of the noninterest income and expense from this division, the Bank earns interest income at the
respective note rates on the balance of loans originated by the division from the time the loan is funded until it is
sold to a secondary market investor. The average outstanding daily balance of residential mortgage loans available
for sale was $116,535,000 during 2012 and $85,116,000 during 2011. The interest income earned on these loans
available for sale was $4,448,000 and $3,676,000 during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Comparisons of the mortgage banking segment results in 2012 to 2011 will be distorted from the impact of the
national network of traditional retail mortgage lending branches, also referred to as the National Retail Group
(NRG). The income and expenses from this delivery channel of the mortgage banking segment will be significantly
higher in 2012 when compared to the 2011, as a result of it being largely nonexistent during the first half of 2011.
Income Taxes
During 2012, we recognized income tax expense of $1,557,000 compared to income tax benefit of $49,000 during
2011. Our effective tax rate was 45% in 2011 and (16%) in 2011. The fluctuation in effective tax rates reflects the
impact of permanent book-to-tax differences from income on bank owned life insurance and municipal securities, as
well as non-tax deductible losses. We recorded a partial valuation allowance of $1,826,000 in 2010 against our
deferred tax asset, and during 2011, we retained a valuation allowance of $1,746,000 against our deferred tax asset.
During 2012, we retained a valuation allowance of $1,727,000 against our deferred tax asset.
Management has considered both negative and positive indicators in assessing the likelihood that the Company will
realize the deferred tax asset through future taxable operating income.
The cumulative loss incurred by the Company in 2008, 2009, and 2010 was the primary negative factor considered
by management. Additionally, general economic conditions in the Company’s primary markets and the potential for
ongoing weakening asset quality were also evaluated as a potential negative factor.
Offsetting these negative factors were numerous positive factors considered by management including:
·

Prior to the losses in 2008, 2009 and 2010 from asset quality costs, the Company had a history of consistent
earnings with cumulative pretax net income of $13,879,000 for the five year period ending December 31,
2007.

·

After nine consecutive quarterly losses through December 31, 2010, the Company’s banking subsidiary,
CBC National Bank, has been profitable for each of the eight consecutive fiscal quarters ending December
31, 2012.
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·

The recent profitability generated at the Company’s banking subsidiary was from ongoing core earning
sources which appear to be on a stable to improving trend. Core earning sources include net interest
income and noninterest income from residential mortgage banking and small business lending activity.
Management’s forecasts indicate that this stable to improving trend in core earnings appears sustainable
over the next few years, and as such the expectation is that there will be future earnings available to realize
the deferred tax asset in future periods.

.

Over the last year, core earnings have increased to levels last attained in 2006, and so management is
cautiously optimistic that more likely than not over the next three to five years income will return to levels
approaching those prior to 2008.

·

The existing portfolio of marketable securities had an unrealized mark to market gain as of December 31,
2012 of $621,000, which could consume up to $211,000 of the deferred tax asset if the decision was made
to sell securities from this portfolio and replace them with current market rate securities.

Based on the analysis above and our projections for the next three to five years, management believes that there is an
increasing probability that the company will be able to realize the full deferred tax asset over the next three to five
years through future operating income and implementation of the tax strategies discussed above. During 2012 we
recorded a reduction of $19,000 to the deferred tax valuation allowance of $1,826,000 that was recorded in the year
ended December 31, 2010. In the event that the Company achieves forecast operating income during 2013,
Management anticipates that the remaining deferred tax valuation allowance of $1,727,000 will likely be reversed
prior to the December 31, 2013 year end, consistent with improved probabilities for its ultimate full utilization over
the next three to five years.
Financial Condition
Total assets decreased from $477,599,000 at December 31, 2011 to $475,001,000 at December 31, 2012. The
primary source of the decrease in assets was in portfolio loans, which decreased $12,230,000 during 2012. This
decrease was partially offset by an increase in loans held for sale, when combined with loan sales receivable. Loans
held for sale, when combined with loan sales receivable, increased $8,594,000, or 5.29%, during 2012. Investment
securities available for sale decreased 16.95% to $18,691,000 at December 31, 2012. Other real estate owned
decreased $1,903,000, or 12.34% during 2012. Cash, due from banks, and federal funds sold increased $5,997,000
during 2012.
During 2012, total liabilities decreased $3,878,000, or 0.87%, when compared to December 31, 2011. During 2012,
total deposits decreased $17,150,000, or 4.84%, while other borrowings increased $12,981,000, or 18.96%.
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase decreased 30.93%, or $2,711,000 during 2012.
Investment Securities
Investment securities decreased to $18,691,000 at December 31, 2012 from $22,506,000 at December 31, 2011.
The following table presents the investments by category:

(In thousands)

Available for sale
State and municipal securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Held to Maturity
Corporate debt securities

2012
Amortized
Estimated
Cost
Fair Value

$

December 31,
2011
Amortized
Estimated
Cost
Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

2010
Estimated
Fair Value

$

2,310 $
15,805
18,115 $

2,347 $
16,344
18,691 $

1,800 $
19,798
21,598 $

1,920 $
20,586
22,506 $

7,132 $
29,862
36,994 $

6,977
30,743
37,720

$
$

— $
— $

— $
— $

— $
— $

— $
— $

2,000 $
2,000 $

2,057
2,057
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The following table presents the maturities of investment securities at carrying value and the weighted average
yields for each range of maturities presented. Yields are based on amortized cost of securities.
Maturities at
December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

State and
Municipal
Securities

Within 1 year
After 1 through 5 years
After 5 through 10 years
After 10 years
Totals

$

$

—
—
2,327
20
2,347

Weighted
Average
Yields

MortgageBacked
Securities

—% $ 1,263
—%
11,457
2.71%
354
6.00%
3,270
2.74% $ 16,344

Weighted
Average
Yields

0.74%
3.47%
2.60%
3.71%
3.29%

Mortgage-backed securities are included in the maturities categories in which they are anticipated to be repaid based
on scheduled maturities.
Loans
Gross loans totaled $242,437,000 at December 31, 2012, a decrease of $12,230,000, or 4.80%, since December 31,
2011. Balances within the major loans receivable categories and geographic concentration of the loan portfolio are
presented below.
Geographic Concentration of Loan Portfolio
December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

$

$

Florida

5,190 $
––
7,833
5,063
45,825
36,781
528
––
101,220 $

Georgia

828 $
3
4,201
624
14,682
22,806
286
––
43,430 $

South Carolina

4,808 $
––
12,170
5,188
37,404
29,048
517
––
89,135 $

Other

248
––
1,728
210
3,767
2,612
87
––
8,652

Geographic Concentration of Loan Portfolio
December 31, 2011
(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

$

$

Florida

5,760 $
––
12,400
3,696
34,962
37,042
507
––
94,367 $
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Georgia

1,329 $
––
6,157
2,114
12,888
23,059
327
155
46,029 $

South Carolina

7,790 $
––
19,276
5,560
36,781
30,989
684
3
101,083 $

Other

160
––
1,928
232
2,015
8,828
25
––
13,188

Other Real Estate Owned
Other real estate owned represents collateral property taken back from borrowers in partial or full satisfaction of
their defaulted debt obligation to the Company. We track our historical experience of loans that ultimately convert
to other real estate owned by collateral type and by geographic exposure as shown on the following tables:
Book Value of Other Real Estate at December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Residential
Commercial
Finished lots
Raw land

$

$

Florida

115 $
3,149
203
1,654
5,121 $

Georgia

391 $
473
––
399
1,263 $

South Carolina

1,835 $
3,712
1,406
184
7,137 $

Total

2,341
7,334
1,609
2,237
13,521

Number of Parcels at December 31, 2012
Florida

Residential
Commercial
Finished lots
Raw land

1
6
6
5
18

Georgia

1
1
––
2
4

South Carolina

15
19
108
2
144

Total

17
26
114
9
166

Book Value of Other Real Estate at December 31, 2011
(In thousands)

Residential
Commercial
Finished lots
Raw land

$

$

Florida

1,524 $
868
950
2,013
5,355 $

Georgia

559 $
473
––
526
1,558 $

South Carolina

3,063 $
3,619
1,612
217
8,511 $

Total

5,146
4,960
2,562
2,756
15,424

Number of Parcels at December 31, 2011

Residential
Commercial
Finished lots
Raw land

Florida

11
5
17
6
39

Georgia

3
1
––
2
6

South Carolina

35
16
89
3
143

Total

49
22
106
11
188

During the year ended December 31, 2012 we sold a total of 74 other real estate owned properties with a total book
value of $7,043,000. The net proceeds from these sales were $5,833,000, which resulted in a net recovery of
approximately 53.0% of the original loan amounts and 82.8% of the book value of the other real estate sold. During
the year ended December 31, 2011 we sold a total of 55 other real estate owned properties with a total book value of
$9,591,000. The net proceeds from these sales were $8,146,000, which resulted in a net recovery of approximately
55.2% of the original loan amounts and 84.9% of the book value of the other real estate sold.
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Deposits
Balances within the major deposit categories are as follows:
December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits
$
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Savings deposits
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and over
Other time deposits
$

Core Retail
Deposits

Core Reciprocal
Deposits

22,823 $
118,104
4,547
89,761
53,027
288,262 $

Brokered
Deposits

–– $
––
––
28,750
721
29,471 $

Total Deposits

–– $
––
––
––
19,788
19,788 $

22,823
118,104
4,547
118,511
73,536
337,521

December 31, 2011
(In thousands)

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits
$
Interest-bearing demand deposits
Savings deposits
Certificates of deposit $100,000 and over
Other time deposits
$

Core Retail
Deposits

Core Reciprocal
Deposits

20,476 $
114,919
4,569
104,110
57,195
301,269 $

Brokered
Deposits

–– $
––
––
28,273
1,252
29,525 $

Total Deposits

–– $
––
––
––
23,877
23,877 $

20,476
114,919
4,569
132,383
82,324
354,671

Other Borrowings and Liquidity
FHLB borrowings totaled $81,428,000 at December 31, 2012, an increase of $12,981,000, or 18.96% from
December 31, 2012.
The Bank maintains relationships with correspondent banks that can provide funds on short notice, if needed.
Presently, the Bank has arrangements with commercial banks for short term unsecured advances of overnight
borrowings of up to $22,500,000, in addition to up to $4,000,000 available for day light overdraft. The Bank also
has reverse repurchase accommodations with a term of up to one month for a maximum advance of $25 million,
limited by the amount of eligible securities pledged, which was $6.1 million at December 31, 2012. The reverse
repurchase agreements are committed borrowing facilities granted by other commercial banks and are secured by
securities in the Bank’s investment portfolio.
As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $188.4 million in total borrowing capacity, of which we had utilized
$109.3 million or 58.0%, leaving remaining available liquidity of $79.1 million. The following tables present
available sources of liquidity at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
December 31, 2012

Available sources of liquidity
Federal funds purchased lines of credit
Available brokered certificates of deposit
Repurchase agreements secured by investment securities
Federal Reserve Borrowing Capacity at Discount Window
Federal Home Loan Bank Advance Availability*
Total sources of liquidity

Total Line of
Credit

Funds Borrowed

Funds
Available

$

22,500,000 $
— $ 22,500,000
33,809,943
19,788,271
14,021,672
6,055,000
6,055,000
—
24,450,560
—
24,450,560
101,606,984
83,427,609
18,179,375
$ 188,422,487 $ 109,270,880 $ 79,151,607

*Funds borrowed includes $2 million letter of credit issued on the Bank’s behalf by Federal Home Loan Bank.
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December 31, 2011

Available sources of liquidity
Federal funds purchased lines of credit
Available brokered certificates of deposit
Repurchase agreements secured by investment securities
Federal Reserve Borrowing Capacity at Discount Window
Federal Home Loan Bank Advance Availability*
Total sources of liquidity

Total Line of
Credit

Funds Borrowed

Funds
Available

$

22,400,000 $
— $ 22,400,000
35,616,312
23,876,804
11,739,508
8,766,000
8,766,000
—
24,500,440
—
24,500,440
93,420,197
70,447,000
22,973,197
$ 184,702,949 $ 103,089,804 $ 81,613,145

*Funds borrowed includes $2 million letter of credit issued on the Bank’s behalf by Federal Home Loan Bank.
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COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,
2012

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing deposits in banks
Federal funds sold
Securities available for sale, at fair value
Restricted equity securities, at cost
Loans held for sale, at fair value

$

Loans, net of unearned income
Less allowance for loan losses
Loans, net
Premises and equipment, net
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Intangible assets
Other real estate owned
Loan sales receivable
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

7,936,393
2,318,897
74,785
18,691,026
5,625,000
62,071,509

2011

$

3,611,404
478,763
243,046
22,505,649
5,136,250
36,122,381

242,437,554
4,679,154
237,758,400

254,667,452
5,221,736
249,445,716

7,288,034
2,172,358
886,027
13,520,752
109,236,511
7,421,572
$ 475,001,264

7,309,083
1,974,210
518,704
15,423,903
126,592,128
8,238,000
$ 477,599,237

$

$

22,823,319
314,698,042
337,521,361

20,476,198
334,195,148
354,671,346

6,055,000
81,427,609
7,217,000
8,339,053
440,560,023

8,766,000
68,447,000
7,217,000
5,336,341
444,437,687

9,725,775

9,651,627

Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 9,950 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
Common stock, par value $.01; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 2,601,767 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012; 2,595,207 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2011
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

26,018
25,952
41,508,221
41,395,811
(17,198,653)
(18,510,653)
379,880
598,813
34,441,241
33,161,550
$ 475,001,264 $ 477,599,237

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31,
2012
2011

Interest income:
Interest and fees on loans
Interest on taxable securities
Interest on nontaxable securities
Interest on deposits in other banks
Interest on federal funds sold
Total interest income

$

16,335,830
711,413
32,906
27,527
407
17,108,083

Interest expense:
Interest on deposits
Interest on junior subordinated debentures
Interest on other borrowings
Total interest expense

$

16,539,340
1,154,762
172,972
13,093
399
17,880,566

3,169,009
253,925
801,637
4,224,571

3,802,813
350,534
1,079,724
5,233,071

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

12,883,512
4,083,541
8,799,971

12,647,495
2,865,039
9,782,456

Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges, commissions and fees
SBA loan income
Mortgage banking income
Gain on sale of securities available for sale
Other than temporary impairment loss on securities available for sale
Income from investment in life insurance contracts
Other income
Total other income

311,257
310,439
3,015,730
44,678,992
141,019
—
128,640
177,138
48,763,215

402,792
303,279
3,468,859
16,263,183
33,484
(41,963)
79,239
153,203
20,662,076

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment expense
Advertising fees
Amortization of intangible assets
Audit fees
Data processing fees
Director fees
FDIC insurance expense
Legal and other professional fees
Loan collection expense
Mortgage loan expense
OCC examination fees
Other real estate expenses
Other operating
Total other expenses

31,908,054
2,548,322
6,110,905
17,556
516,920
1,417,366
122,400
598,957
1,018,595
324,520
3,318,330
184,343
3,398,779
2,637,084
54,122,131

14,417,984
1,835,573
2,468,684
39,801
426,111
1,150,479
134,500
642,505
962,244
585,458
1,429,727
171,443
4,103,258
1,768,743
30,136,510

Income before income taxes (benefits)
Income tax expense (benefits)
Net income
Preferred stock dividends
Net earnings (losses) available to common shareholders
Basic and diluted earnings (losses) per share available to common shareholders

$

3,441,055
1,557,411
1,883,644

$

308,022
(49,202)
357,224

$
$

571,644
1,312,000
.51

$
$

567,420
(210,196)
(.08)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended
December 31,

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (benefit):
Net unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period, net of tax (benefit) of
($64,838) and $72,783
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income, net of tax of $47,946
and $11,385
Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income

$

$

2011

357,224

(125,860)

141,285

(93,073)
(218,933)
$ 1,664,711 $

(22,099)
119,186
476,410

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2012

1,883,644

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Balance, December 31, 2010
Net income
Restricted stock grant
Preferred stock dividend
Stock-based compensation
expense
Other comprehensive
income
Balance, December 31, 2011
Net income
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options
Preferred stock dividend
Stock-based compensation
expense
Other comprehensive
loss
Balance, December 31, 2012

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount
9,950
$
9,581,703
—
—
—
—
—
69,924
—

—

—

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
2,588,707
$ 25,887
—
—
6,500
65
—
—
—

Additional
Paid-in
Accumulated
Capital
Deficit
$
41,247,995 $ (18,300,457)
––
357,224
(65)
—
––
(567,420)

—

147,881

—

—

9,651,627

2,595,207

—

—

—

—

––

—

—
74,148

6,560
—

66
—

22,238
––

—

—

—

—

90,172

9,950

$

—
9,950

$

—

—

9,725,775

2,601,767

—
$

25,952

—
$

—
$

26,018

41,395,811 $

—
$

41,508,221 $

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
$
479,627 $
—
—
—

—

—

—

119,186

(18,510,653) $
1,883,644
—
(571,644)
—
—
(17,198,653) $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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598,813

Total
33,034,755
357,224
—
(497,496)
147,881
119,186

$

—

33,161,550
1,883,644

—
—

22,304
(497,496)

—

90,172

(218,933)
379,880 $

(218,933)
34,441,241

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31,
2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Amortization of intangible assets
Stock-based compensation expense
Provision for loan losses
Provision for deferred income taxes
Gain on sale of securities available for sale
Other than temporary impairment on securities available for sale
Net (increase) decrease in loan sales receivable
Write downs and losses on sale of other real estate owned
Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned
Increase in cash value of life insurance
Originations of mortgage loans held for sale
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans held for sale
Net decrease in interest receivable
Net increase (decrease) in interest payable
SBA loan income
Mortgage banking income
Net other operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

1,883,644

$

357,224

589,266
17,556
90,172
4,083,541
1,922,163
(141,019)
—
17,355,617
2,762,432
5,833,451
(128,640)
(2,011,748,188)
2,030,478,052
144,784
(232,958)
(3,015,730)
(44,678,992)
4,204,218
9,419,369

587,371
39,801
147,881
2,865,039
439,111
(33,484)
41,963
(95,086,345)
3,369,170
8,146,338
(79,239)
(1,069,123,073)
1,104,599,882
175,763
256,400
(3,468,859)
(16,263,183)
3,166,461
(59,861,779)

(1,840,134)
168,261
6,593,266
1,596,250
(4,732,965)
—
(488,750)
911,043
(443,279)
1,763,692

(72,063)
(57,788)
9,888,126
6,407,595
(1,094,613)
2,000,000
(663,750)
(3,205,411)
(386,112)
12,815,984

(17,149,985)
(2,711,000)
64,427,609
(51,447,000)
22,304
(6,858,072)

8,621,067
8,766,000
43,447,000
(12,000,000)
—
48,834,067

$

1,788,272
1,823,132
3,611,404

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits in banks
Net (increase) decrease in federal funds sold
Proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale
Purchases of securities available for sale
Proceeds from maturities of securities held to maturity
Net change in restricted equity securities
Net (increase) decrease in loans
Purchase of premises and equipment
Net cash provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Proceeds from other borrowings
Repayment of other borrowings
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash used provided by (used in) financing activities

2011

Net increase in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year
Cash and due from banks at end of year

$

4,324,989
3,611,404
7,936,393

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

$
$

4,457,529
353,132

$
$

4,976,671
126,960

Noncash Transactions:
Principal balances of loans transferred to other real estate owned

$

6,692,732

$

12,487,368

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
21

COASTAL BANKING COMPANY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Nature of Operations
Coastal Banking Company, Inc. (the “Company”) is organized under the laws of the State of South Carolina for the
purpose of operating as a bank holding company for CBC National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank commenced
business on May 10, 2000 as Lowcountry National Bank. The Company acquired First National Bank of Nassau
County, which began its operations in 1999, through its merger with First Capital Bank Holding Corporation on
October 1, 2005. On October 27, 2006, the Company acquired the Meigs, Georgia office of the Bank through
merger of Cairo Banking Co. with and into the Bank. On August 10, 2008, Lowcountry National Bank and First
National Bank of Nassau County merged into one charter. Immediately after the merger, the name of the surviving
bank was changed to CBC National Bank and the main office relocated to 1891 South 14th Street, Fernandina Beach,
Nassau County, Florida. The Bank provides full commercial banking services to customers throughout Beaufort
County, South Carolina; Nassau County, Florida; and Thomas County, Georgia and is subject to regulation by the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the
“FDIC”). The Company is subject to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the
“Federal Reserve Board”).
The Bank also has loan production offices in Savannah, Georgia and Jacksonville, Florida, as well as a residential
mortgage banking division headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia. The mortgage banking division operates ten retail
residential loan production offices in California, Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Maryland, New York, and Ohio. The
Company also has an investment in Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust I (“Trust I”) and Coastal Banking
Company Statutory Trust II (“Trust II”). Both trusts are special purpose subsidiaries organized for the sole purpose
of issuing trust preferred securities.
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the
Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to general
practices in the banking industry.
Accounting Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amount of income and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of foreclosed assets and deferred taxes, other-than-temporary
impairments of securities, and the fair value of financial instruments.
The Company has evaluated all transactions, events, and circumstances for consideration or disclosure through
March 1, 2013, the date these financial statements were available to be issued, and has reflected or disclosed those
items within the consolidated financial statements and related footnotes as deemed appropriate.
The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are particularly
susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In connection with the
determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent appraisals for significant collateral.
The Bank's loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, consumer assets, and
business assets. Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to
honor their contracts is dependent on local economic conditions.
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While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the carrying
amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies,
as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on loans. Such agencies
may require the Bank to recognize additional losses based on their judgments about information available to them at
the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans
may change materially in the near term. However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be
estimated.
Cash, Due from Banks and Cash Flows
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and due from banks includes cash on hand, cash items in process of
collection and amounts due from banks. Cash flows from loans, loans sales receivable, federal funds sold, deposits,
interest-bearing deposits in banks, restricted equity securities and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are
reported net.
The Bank is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. The total of
those reserve requirements was approximately $25,000 at December 31, 2012 and $100,000 at December 31, 2011.
Securities
The Company classifies its securities as available for sale or held to maturity. Held to maturity securities are those
securities for which the Company has the ability and intent to hold until maturity. All securities not included in held
to maturity are classified as available for sale.
Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value. Held to maturity securities are recorded at cost, adjusted for
the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities available
for sale, net of the related tax effect, are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity until realized.
In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers, among other things, (i) the length of
time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (iii) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
A decline in the market value of securities below cost that is deemed other than temporary is charged to earnings
and establishes a new cost basis for the security.
Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related securities as adjustments to the yield.
Realized gains and losses for securities classified as available for sale and held to maturity are included in earnings
and are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of securities sold.
The Company evaluates investment securities for other-than-temporary impairment using relevant accounting
guidance specifying that (a) if the Company does not have the intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery and (b)
it is more likely than not that it will not have to sell the debt security prior to recovery, the security would not be
considered other-than-temporary impaired unless there is a credit loss has occurred in the security. If management
does not intend to sell the security and it is more likely than not that they will not have to sell the security before
recovery of the cost basis, management will recognize the credit component of an other-than-temporary impairment
of a debt security in earnings and the remaining portion in other comprehensive income.
Restricted Equity Securities
The Company is required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta
(“FHLB”) and the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta (“FRB”). The stock is generally pledged as collateral against
any borrowings from these institutions. Based on redemption provisions of these entities, the stock has no quoted
market value and is carried at cost. At their discretion, these entities may declare dividends on the stock.
Management reviews for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability of the cost basis in these stocks. At
December 31, 2012 the balance of FHLB stock was $4,380,800 and the balance of FRB stock was $1,244,200. At
December 31, 2011 the balance of FHLB stock was $3,959,600 and the balance of FRB stock was $1,171,650.
In addition, the Bank purchased an investment in common stock of the holding company of one of the Bank’s
correspondent banks during 2010. The balance of this stock was $5,000 at December 31, 2011.
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Loans Held for Sale
Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at fair value under the fair value option
accounting guidance for financial instruments. Gains and losses on loan sales (sales proceeds minus carrying value)
are recorded in noninterest income.
The Bank also originates SBA loans, which in some cases are sold on the secondary market. Origination fees
associated with these loans are amortized over the life of the loan or until a decision is made to sell. Once the
decision is made to sell, adjustments to reflect fair value and realized gains and losses upon ultimate sale of the loans
are classified as noninterest income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Loan Sales Receivable
In accordance with trade date accounting guidance, the sale of residential mortgage loans is recognized at the time
that all conditions precedent to the sale have been met and all material risks and rewards of loan ownership have
passed from the Bank to the investor purchasing the loans. This typically occurs when the physical loan documents
are delivered to the investor. Upon delivery of loan documents, the Bank records the gain or loss on sale of the
loans and recognizes the receivable from the investor for the proceeds of sale.
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net of deferred loan origination fees and costs and the
allowance for loan losses. Interest on loans is calculated by using the interest method based upon the principal
amount outstanding. Loan origination and commitment fees and direct loan origination costs are deferred and
amortized over the contractual or expected economic life of the related loan or commitments as an adjustment of the
related loan yields.
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected. Impaired loans are measured based on
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, at the loan’s
observable market price, or at the fair value of the collateral of the loan if the loan is collateral dependent.
To the extent that the recovery of loan balances has become collateral dependent, we obtain appraisals not less than
annually, and then we reduce these appraised values for selling and holding costs to determine the liquidated value.
Any shortfall between the liquidated value and the loan balance is charged against the Allowance for Loan Losses in
the month the related appraisal was received. In the ordinary course of managing and monitoring non performing
loans, information may come to our attention that indicates the collateral value has declined further from the value
established in the most recent appraisal. Such other information may include prices on recent comparable property
sales or internet based property valuation estimates. In cases where this other information is deemed reliable, and
the impact of a further reduction in collateral value would result in a further loss to the Company, we will record an
increase to the allowance to reflect the additional estimated collateral shortfall.
Accrual of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after considering economic and business
conditions and collection efforts that the borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful.
When the ultimate collectability of an impaired loan’s principal is in doubt, wholly or partially, all cash receipts are
applied to principal.
The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loans are
charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collectability of the principal is
unlikely. The allowance represents an amount, which, in management’s judgment, will be adequate to absorb
probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible.
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Management’s judgment in determining the adequacy of the allowance is based on evaluations of the collectability
of loans. These evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, historical losses, high loan concentrations, trends in past dues and non-accrual loans, loan risk ratings,
economic conditions, market conditions and other internal and external factors that influence each portfolio segment
and review of specific impaired loans. The combination of these results are compared monthly to the recorded
allowance for loan losses for reasonableness and material differences are adjusted by increasing or decreasing the
provision for loan losses. Management uses an external loan review program to challenge and corroborate the
internal loan grading system and provide additional analysis in determining the adequacy of the allowance and the
future provisions for estimated loan losses.
Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While management uses available information
to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic
conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically
review the Bank’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the
allowance based on judgments different than those of management.
Troubled Debt Restructurings
The Company designates loan modifications as troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”) when for economic and legal
reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulties, it grants a concession to the borrower that it would not
otherwise consider. TDRs can involve loans remaining on nonaccrual, moving to nonaccrual, or continuing on
accrual status, depending on the individual facts and circumstances of the borrower. In circumstances where the
TDR involves charging off a portion of the loan balance, the Company typically classifies these restructurings as
nonaccrual.
In connection with restructurings, the decision to maintain a loan that has been restructured on accrual status is
based on a current, well documented credit evaluation of the borrower’s financial condition and prospects for
repayment under the modified terms. This evaluation includes consideration of the borrower’s current capacity to
pay, which among other things may include a review of the borrower’s current financial statements, an analysis of
global cash flow sufficient to pay all debt obligations, a debt to income analysis, and an evaluation of secondary
sources of payment from the borrower and any guarantors. This evaluation also includes an evaluation of the
borrower’s current willingness to pay, which may include a review of past payment history, an evaluation of the
borrower’s willingness to provide information on a timely basis, and consideration of offers from the borrower to
provide additional collateral or guarantor support. The credit evaluation also reflects consideration of the
borrower’s future capacity and willingness to pay, which may include evaluation of cash flow projections,
consideration of the adequacy of collateral to cover all principal and interest, and trends indicating improving
profitability and collectability of receivables.
Restructured nonaccrual loans may be returned to accrual status based on a current, well-documented credit
evaluation of the borrower’s financial condition and prospects for repayment under the modified terms. This
evaluation must include consideration of the borrower’s sustained historical repayment for a reasonable period,
generally a minimum of six months, prior to the date on which the loan is returned to accrual status.
Non-performing Assets
Loans are placed in a non-accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the collection of additional interest is
questionable. Thereafter, no interest is taken into income unless received in cash or until such time as the borrower
demonstrates the ability to pay principal and interest.
Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Costs incurred for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful life of the asset are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment

10 - 40 years
3 - 10 years
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Intangible Assets
Intangible assets consist of core deposit premiums acquired in connection with business combinations and Loan
Servicing Rights (LSR) on the portion of SBA loans participated to other institutions and serviced by the Company.
The core deposit premiums were initially recognized based on valuations performed as of the consummation date.
The core deposit premiums are amortized over the average remaining life of the acquired customer deposits.
Amortization periods are reviewed annually. Included in the consolidated statements of operations for
December 31, 2012, and 2011 were charges for amortization of identifiable intangible assets in the amounts of
$18,000 and $40,000, respectively.
Prior to 2011, the Company did not recognize an asset for the value of LSR on the portion of Small Business
Administration loans that were participated (sold) to other institutions and serviced by the Company. The value of
LSRs currently reported, therefore, relates only to SBA loans that were participated and sold to others since the
beginning of 2011. LSRs are carried at original fair value, as determined by an independent evaluation, less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded over the expected life of the loan. The LSR asset is evaluated
for impairment at the end of each quarter, by obtaining a revised fair value from an independent third party. The
related balance of SBA loans participated and serviced for others was $40,794,000 at December 31, 2012, and
$21,890,000 at December 31, 2011.
Other real estate owned
Other real estate owned acquired through or in lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at
fair value less selling costs. Any write-down to fair value at the time of transfer to other real estate owned is charged
to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management
and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Costs of improvements are
capitalized, to the extent that these costs don’t increase the total carrying amount above the improved fair value less
selling costs. Costs relating to holding other real estate owned and subsequent adjustments to the value are
expensed. The carrying amount of other real estate owned at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $13,520,752 and
$15,423,903, respectively.
Derivatives
Derivatives are recognized as assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and measured at fair value. For
exchange-traded contracts, fair value is based on quotable market prices. For nonexchange traded contracts, fair
value is based on dealer quotes, pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques for
which the determination of fair value may require significant management judgment or estimation.
Cash flows resulting from the derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as hedges of assets and
liabilities are classified in the cash flow statement in the same category as the cash flows of the items being hedged.
Derivative Loan Commitments: Mortgage loan commitments that relate to the origination of a mortgage that will be
held for sale upon funding are considered derivative instruments under the derivatives and hedging accounting
guidance (FASB ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging). Loan commitments that are derivatives are recognized at fair
value on the consolidated balance sheet in other assets and other liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded
in noninterest income.
Forward Loan Sale Commitments: The Company carefully evaluates all loan sales agreements to determine
whether they meet the definition of a derivative under the derivatives and hedging accounting guidance (FASB ASC
815) as facts and circumstances may differ significantly. If agreements qualify, to protect against the price risk
inherent in derivative loan commitments, the Company uses both “mandatory delivery” and “best efforts” forward
loan sale commitments to mitigate the risk of potential decreases in the values of loans that would result from the
exercise of the derivative loan commitments. Mandatory delivery contracts are accounted for as derivative
instruments. Accordingly, forward loan sale commitments are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance
sheet in other assets and liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in other noninterest income.
The Company estimates the fair value of its forward loan sales commitments using a methodology similar to that
used for derivative loan commitments.
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Income Taxes
The income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and deferred.
Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of
the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred
income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability
is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted
changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.
Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred
tax assets are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be
realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent;
the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if
any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured
as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement
with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a
tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and
information available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment. Deferred tax assets may be
reduced by deferred tax liabilities and a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Stock Compensation Plans
Stock compensation accounting guidance (FASB ASC 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation) requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. That cost will
be measured based on the grant date fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. The stock compensation
accounting guidance covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including stock options,
restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.
The stock compensation accounting guidance requires that compensation cost for all stock awards be calculated and
recognized over the employees’ service period, generally defined as the vesting period. Compensation cost is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. A Black-Scholes model is
used to estimate the fair value of stock options, while the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date
of grant is used for restricted stock awards and stock grants.
Earnings (Losses) Per Share
The Company is required to report earnings (losses) per common share with and without the dilutive effects of
potential common stock issuances from instruments such as options, convertible securities and warrants on the face
of the statements of operations. Basic earnings (losses) per common share are based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period, which was 2,591,923 shares in 2012 and 2,576,289 shares
in 2011, while the effects of potential common shares outstanding during the period are included in diluted earnings
per share. Additionally, the Company must reconcile the amounts used in the computation of both “basic earnings
per share” and “diluted earnings per share”. At December 31, 2012, potential common shares of 254,001 were not
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise of such shares would be anti-dilutive.
There were 974,197 anti-dilutive potential common shares at December 31, 2011. Earnings (losses) per common
share amounts are as follows:
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For the year ended December 31,

Net income
Preferred stock dividends
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders

$
$

Weighted average common shares
Effect of dilutive securities
Diluted average common shares

2012

1,883,644 $
(571,644)
1,312,000 $
2,591,923
181
2,592,104

Earnings (losses) per common share
Diluted earnings (losses) per common share

$
$

.51
.51

2011

357,224
(567,420)
(210,196)

2,576,289
––
2,576,289
$
$

(.08)
(.08)

Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company - put
presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership, (2) the
transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return
specific assets.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimates using relevant market information and other assumptions, as more
fully disclosed in Note 19. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment. Changes
in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.
Comprehensive Income
Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale
securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net
income, are components of comprehensive income.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Risks and Uncertainties
In the normal course of its business, the Company encounters two significant types of risk: economic and regulatory.
There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company is
subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or on
different bases, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company’s loan portfolio that
results from borrowers’ inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects
changes in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable, the valuation of real estate held by the Company, and
the valuation of loans held for sale and mortgage-backed securities available for sale.
The Company is subject to the regulations of various government agencies. These regulations can and do change
significantly from period to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies,
which may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances, and
operating restrictions, resulting from the regulators’ judgments based on information available to them at the time of
their examination.

28

Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes
primarily through our full-service offices in Beaufort County, South Carolina; in and around Fulton, Chatham and
Thomas Counties in Georgia; and in and around Duval and Nassau Counties in Florida. The Company’s loan
portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any single borrower or in a relatively small number of borrowers. We
continue to carry an increased level of exposure to construction loans that have been subjected to a real estate market
down-turn which has adversely affected the earnings of the Company.
In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries
and geographic regions, management monitors exposure to credit risk that could arise from potential concentrations
of lending products and practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g.
principal deferral period, loans with initial interest-only payments, etc), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios.
Additionally, there are industry practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic
conditions change over the course of a loan’s life. For example, the Company makes variable-rate loans and fixedrate principal-amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon-payment loans). These
loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks.
The Company’s investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States, its agencies or its
corporations and general obligation municipal securities. In the opinion of management, there is no concentration of
credit risk in this investment portfolio. The Company places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells
its federal funds to high quality institutions. Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent accounts
is not significant.
Reclassification of Certain Items
Certain items in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 have been
reclassified, with no effect on net income, to be consistent with the classifications adopted for the year ended
December 31, 2012.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Changes
ASU No. 2011-03, “Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860) - Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase
Agreements.” ASU 2011-03 is intended to improve financial reporting of repurchase agreements and other
agreements that both entitle and obligate a transferor to repurchase or redeem financial assets before their maturity.
ASU 2011-03 removes from the assessment of effective control (i) the criterion requiring the transferor to have the
ability to repurchase or redeem the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of default by
the transferee, and (ii) the collateral maintenance guidance related to that criterion. ASU 2011-03 became effective
for the Corporation on January 1, 2012 and did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial
statements.
ASU 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) - Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs.” ASU 2011-04 amends Topic 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures,” to converge the fair value measurement guidance in U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and International Financial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-04 clarifies the application of
existing fair value measurement requirements, changes certain principles in Topic 820 and requires additional fair
value disclosures. ASU 2011-04 became effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2012 and, aside from new
disclosures included in Note 19 – Fair Value Measurements, did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s
financial statements.
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ASU 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) - Presentation of Comprehensive Income.” ASU 2011-05
amends Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income,” to require that all non-owner changes in stockholders’ equity be
presented in either a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Additionally, ASU 2011-05 requires entities to present, on the face of the financial statements,
reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income in the
statement or statements where the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income
are presented. The option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes
in stockholders’ equity was eliminated. ASU 2011-05 became effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2012;
however, certain provisions related to the presentation of reclassification adjustments have been deferred by
ASU 2011-12 “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) – Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting
Standards Update No. 2011-05,” as further discussed below. In connection with the application of ASU 2011-05, the
Corporation’s financial statements continue to include a separate statement of comprehensive income.
ASU 2011-08, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) - Testing Goodwill for Impairment.” ASU 2011-08
amends Topic 350, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other,” to give entities the option to first assess qualitative factors
to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or
circumstances, an entity determines it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, then performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary. However, if an entity concludes
otherwise, then it is required to perform the first step of the two-step impairment test by calculating the fair value of
the reporting unit and comparing the fair value with the carrying amount of the reporting unit. ASU 2011-08 became
effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2012 and did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial
statements.
ASU 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210) - “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities.” ASU 2011-11
amends Topic 210, “Balance Sheet,” to require an entity to disclose both gross and net information about financial
instruments, such as sales and repurchase agreements and reverse sale and repurchase agreements and securities
borrowing/lending arrangements, and derivative instruments that are eligible for offset in the statement of financial
position and/or subject to a master netting arrangement or similar agreement. ASU No. 2013-01, “Balance Sheet
(Topic 210)—Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities,” clarifies that ordinary
trade receivables are not within the scope of ASU 2011-11. ASU 2011-11 is effective for annual and interim periods
beginning on January 1, 2013, and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial
statements.
ASU 2011-12, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) - Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting
Standards Update No. 2011-05.” ASU 2011-12 defers changes in ASU No. 2011-05 that relate to the presentation
of reclassification adjustments to allow the FASB time to redeliberate whether to require presentation of such
adjustments on the face of the financial statements to show the effects of reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income on the components of net income and other comprehensive income. ASU 2011-12 allows
entities to continue to report reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income consistent with the
presentation requirements in effect before ASU No. 2011-05. All other requirements in ASU No. 2011-05 are not
affected by ASU No. 2011-12. ASU 2011-12 became effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2012 and did not
have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.
ASU 2012-02, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) - Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impairment.” ASU 2012-02 give entities the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the
existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, an entity determines it is more
likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, then the entity must perform the quantitative
impairment test. If, under the quantitative impairment test, the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds its
fair value, an entity should recognize an impairment loss in the amount of that excess. Permitting an entity to assess
qualitative factors when testing indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment results in guidance that is similar to
the goodwill impairment testing guidance in ASU 2011-08. ASU 2012-02 is effective for the Corporation beginning
January 1, 2013 (early adoption permitted) and is not expected to have a significant impact on the Corporation’s
financial statements.
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Note 2.

Regulatory Oversight, Capital Adequacy, Operating Results, Liquidity and Management’s Plans

Regulatory Oversight
The Bank entered into a formal agreement with the OCC on August 26, 2009 (the “Agreement”) that imposes
certain operational and financial directives on the Bank. The specific directives of the Agreement address the credit
risk in the Bank’s loan portfolio, action required to protect the Bank’s interest in criticized assets, adherence to the
Bank’s written profit plan to improve and sustain earnings, limitations on the maximum allowable level of brokered
deposits, excluding reciprocal CDARS deposits, and the establishment of a board level Compliance Committee to
monitor the Bank’s adherence to the Agreement.
Additionally, in response to a request by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond, the Board of Directors of Coastal
Banking Company, Inc. adopted a resolution on January 27, 2010. This resolution required that the Company obtain
prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board before incurring additional debt, purchasing or redeeming its capital
stock, or declaring or paying cash dividends to common shareholders. The resolution also required that the
Company provide the Federal Reserve Bank with prior notification before using its cash assets for purposes other
than investments in obligations or equity of the Bank, investments in short-term, liquid assets, or payment of normal
and customary expenses, including regularly scheduled interest payments on existing debt.
On November 17, 2010 the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”), an informal
enforcement action, with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in lieu of the board resolution described above.
The terms of the MOU are substantially similar to the terms of the Board Resolution. Generally, the MOU requires
the Company to obtain prior approval of the Federal Reserve Bank before incurring additional debt, purchasing or
redeeming its capital stock, or declaring or paying cash dividends on its securities, including dividends on its
common stock and TARP preferred stock, and interest on its trust preferred securities. Additionally, the MOU
requires the Company to comply with banking regulations that prohibit certain indemnification and severance
payments and that require prior approval of any appointment of any new directors or the hiring or change in position
of any senior executive officers of the Company. The MOU also requires the submission of quarterly progress
reports.
As a result of the Agreement, and the MOU, the Bank and the Company are now operating under heightened
regulatory scrutiny and monitoring. Management has taken aggressive steps to address the components of the
Agreement and has frequent contact with the OCC as we work to improve our financial condition and comply with
all regulatory directives. Monitoring of our progress by our regulators is much more frequent and includes interim
on-site visits as well as ongoing telephone consultations. Management recognizes that failure to adequately address
the Agreement and the MOU could result in additional actions by the banking regulators with the potential for more
severe operating restrictions and oversight requirements, including, but not limited to, the issuance of a consent
order and civil money penalties.
Capital Adequacy
As of December 31, 2012, the Bank exceeded all of the regulatory capital ratio levels to be categorized as “well
capitalized.” In light of current market conditions and the Bank’s current risk profile, the Bank has determined that
it must achieve and maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets of 12% and a minimum
leverage ratio of 8% to be considered well capitalized under these market conditions. The Bank exceeded these
internal capital ratios as well.
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Key to our efforts to maintain existing capital adequacy is the need for the Bank to maintain profitability through a
focus on increasing core earnings and decreasing the levels of adversely classified and nonperforming assets.
Management is pursuing a number of strategic alternatives to improve the core earnings of the Bank and to reduce
the level of classified assets. Current market conditions for banking institutions, the overall uncertainty in financial
markets and the Bank’s high level of non-performing assets are potential barriers to the success of these strategies. If
current adverse market factors continue for a prolonged period of time, new adverse market factors emerge, and/or
the Bank is unable to successfully execute its plans or adequately address regulatory concerns in a sufficient and
timely manner, it could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s business, results of operations and financial
position.
Operating Results
The Company recorded net income of $1,884,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to net income of
$357,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. During both years, we experienced excessive levels of
nonperforming assets, which caused the Company to record increased carrying costs on foreclosed properties and
losses on the sale of foreclosed properties. Carrying costs on foreclosed assets are expected to remain elevated
during 2013 as the Company continues to liquidate these non-performing assets. The current year net income of
$1,884,000 represents a significant improvement from the net income of $357,000 for the year ended December 31,
2011.
Management has implemented a number of actions in an effort to improve earnings, including continued emphasis
on non interest income from mortgage banking and small business lending activity, significant reductions to the cost
of interest bearing liabilities and strict controls over other operating expenses. These actions have been effective in
improving core earnings in 2011 and 2012; however, asset quality charges throughout the year continued to
negatively impact earnings. Management will continue to focus on asset quality levels as concerns remain that the
existing negative economic conditions may worsen, resulting in continued losses that will hinder our ability to return
to profitability and further erode capital levels.
Liquidity
Management monitors liquidity on a daily basis and forecasts liquidity needs over a 90 day horizon in order to
anticipate and provide for future needs. We also utilize a comprehensive contingency funding policy that uses
several key liquidity ratios or metrics to define different stages of the Company’s overall liquidity position. This
policy defines actions or strategies that are employed based on the liquidity position of the Company to reduce the
risk of a future liquidity shortfall.
The primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, deposits, scheduled repayments of loans, unpledged
investment securities, available borrowing facilities and proceeds from loan sales receivable. Within deposits we
utilize retail deposits from our branch locations, a modest level of brokered deposits, CDARS reciprocal deposits
and deposits from other insured depository institutions. The Agreement requires that our brokered deposits,
excluding reciprocal CDARs, not exceed 10% of our total deposits, which is consistent with our existing internal
liquidity policy. As a result of our existing internal liquidity policy, we have been and anticipate continuing to be in
compliance with the brokered deposit limitation provision of the Agreement. Although the FDIC Call Report
defines CDARS reciprocal deposits as brokered deposits, CDARS reciprocal deposits are excluded from the
brokered deposit limitation provision in the Agreement. At December 31, 2012 we have the capacity to raise up to
an additional $14,022,000 in brokered deposits, if needed, and continue to remain in compliance with the 10%
limitation in the Agreement. Our borrowing facilities include collateralized repurchase agreements and unsecured
federal funds lines with correspondent banks, as well as borrowing agreements with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Atlanta and the Federal Reserve Bank collateralized by pledged loans and securities.
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As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $188.4 million in total borrowing capacity, of which we had utilized
$109.3 million or 58.0%, leaving remaining available liquidity of $79.1 million. Additionally, loans available for
sale are considered by management as a key source of liquidity because of the speed with which these loans are sold
and settled for cash. Management expects that, on average, loans originated for sale will be sold and converted to
cash within 18 to 20 business days after the loan is originated. The balance of loans available for sale averaged just
over $127 million during the fourth quarter of 2012. Accordingly, in the event of a liquidity crisis, we anticipate
having the ability to slow or stop loan origination activity to allow the loans available for sale to convert into cash.
Based on current and expected liquidity needs and sources, management expects the Company to be able to meet all
obligations as they become due.
Note 3.

Investment Securities

Investment securities are as follows:
December 31, 2012
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses

Amortized
Cost

Available for sale
State and municipal securities
Mortgage-backed securities - residential

$ 2,309,897
15,805,554
$18,115,451

$
$

$
$

(8,524) $ 2,347,318
(37,152) 16,343,708
(45,676) $ 18,691,026

December 31, 2011
Gross
Gross
Unrealized
Unrealized
Gains
Losses

Amortized
Cost

Available for sale
State and municipal securities
Mortgage-backed securities - residential

45,945
575,306
621,251

Fair
Value

$ 1,800,628
19,797,729
$21,598,357

$
$

119,336
797,364
916,700

$
$

Fair
Value

— $ 1,919,964
(9,408) 20,585,685
(9,408) $ 22,505,649

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value of securities, aggregated by category and length of
time that the securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2012.
Investment securities available for sale:
Less than 12 Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

State and municipal
securities
$ 1,095,990
Mortgage-backed
securities - residential
2,924,757
Total
$ 4,020,747

12 Months or More
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

$

(8,524) $

—

$

(37,152)
(45,676) $

—
—

Total
Fair
Value

$

—

$ 1,095,990

$

—
—

2,924,757
$ 4,020,747

Unrealized
Losses

$

(8,524)

$

(37,152)
(45,676)

As of December 31, 2012, no individual securities available for sale were in a continuous loss position for twelve
months or more. The Company will review investment securities that are in an unrealized loss position in
accordance with its accounting policy for other than temporary impairment by reviewing industry analyst reports
and credit ratings on the specific securities. To the extent that any deterioration in value, as of the reporting date,
was attributable to changes in market interest rates and not in the credit quality of the issuer, the unrealized losses
would be considered temporary because the related security carries an acceptable investment grade and the
repayment sources of principal and interest are government backed. The Company has the ability and intent to hold
these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature.
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The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value of securities, aggregated by category and length of
time that securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2011.
Investment securities available for sale:
Less than 12 Months
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

Mortgage-backed
securities - residential $
Total
$

901,726
901,726

$
$

12 Months or More
Fair
Unrealized
Value
Losses

(3,870) $ 1,214,800
(3,870) $ 1,214,800

$
$

Total
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

(5,538) $ 2,116,526
(5,538) $ 2,116,526

$
$

(9,408)
(9,408)

As of December 31, 2011, one individual security available for sale was in a continuous loss position for twelve
months or more. The Company has reviewed this investment security in accordance with its accounting policy for
other than temporary impairment and believes, based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings, that the
deterioration in value, as of December 31, 2011, was attributable to changes in market interest rates, and not due to
the specific credit quality of the issuer. The unrealized loss is considered temporary because the security issuer
carries an acceptable credit profile and the repayment sources of principal and interest are government backed. The
Company has the ability and intent to hold this security until such time as the value recovers or the security matures.
In addition, as of December 31, 2011 we recorded an other-than-temporary impairment loss on one municipal
security that was in a continuous loss position for over twelve months. The deterioration was due to the specific
credit quality of the issuer, and management sold the security during the first quarter of 2012. Because the
security’s amortized cost was reduced to equal its fair value at December 31, 2011, it is no longer included in the
unrealized loss table above.
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2012, by contractual maturity,
are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
Amortized Cost

Available for sale
Due in one year or less
Due from one year to five years
Due from five to ten years
Due after ten years
Mortgage-backed securities - residential

$

$

—
—
51,297
2,258,600
15,805,554
18,115,451

Fair Value
$

$

—
—
57,148
2,290,170
16,343,708
18,691,026

Securities were pledged to secure public deposits and Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings with an amortized cost
and fair value of $8,448,000 and $8,909,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2012 and $9,147,000 and $9,722,000,
respectively, as of December 31, 2011. Pledged securities may not be sold without first pledging replacement
securities and obtaining consent of the party to whom the securities are pledged.
Securities were sold under agreement to repurchase with an amortized cost and fair value of $6,877,000 and
$6,999,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2012. Securities were sold under agreement to repurchase with an
amortized cost and fair value of $9,433,000 and $9,640,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2011.
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Gains and losses on sales of securities available for sale consist of the following:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Gross gains on sales of securities
Gross losses on sales of securities
Net realized gains on sales of securities available for sale
Other than temporary impairment (OTTI) recognized on a municipal security
Securities gains (losses), net
Note 4.

2012

$

2011

147,342 $
(6,323)
141,019 $

$

84,455

(50,971)

33,484

(41,963)

—

$

141,019

$

(8,479)

Loans and allowance for loan losses

The composition of loans is summarized as follows:
December 31,

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other
Gross loans, net of unearned income
Less: Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

$

2012

11,073,784
3,287
25,932,301
11,085,268
101,677,551
91,246,782
1,418,581
—

242,437,554
4,679,154
$ 237,758,400

2011

$ 15,039,027
—
39,760,844
11,602,247
86,646,154
99,918,177
1,543,003
158,000
254,667,452
5,221,736
$ 249,445,716

The Bank grants loans and extensions of credit to individuals and a variety of businesses and corporations located in
its general trade areas of Beaufort County, South Carolina, Nassau County, Florida and Thomas County, Georgia.
Although the Bank has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of the loan portfolio is collateralized by
improved and unimproved real estate and is dependent upon the real estate market.
A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance (FASB ASC 310-10-35-16),
when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts
due from the borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Additionally, recent FASB guidance
requires that by definition, all loans classified as troubled debt restructurings must also be classified as impaired. In
cases where management believes a restructured loan will return all amounts due under the restructured loan terms,
and those terms do not include the loss of any portion of the original principal balance, restructured loans are not
internally classified, monitored or managed as impaired loans. Accordingly, GAAP reporting requirements result in
a higher level of loans classified as impaired than are considered as impaired by management. Impaired loans as
defined by GAAP are summarized as follows:
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Recorded
Investment

(In thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage
Total impaired loans:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage

$

$
$
$

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

139 $
2,640
7,599

140 $
2,983
9,052

117
694
3,755

117
697
4,061

256 $
3,334 $
11,354 $

257 $
3,680 $
13,113 $

December 31, 2012
Recorded
Allowance

— $
—
—
37
135
1,010
37 $
135 $
1,010 $

Average
Recorded
Investment

152 $
2,580
8,675

Interest Income
Recognized

8
106
382

117
697
3,991

—
21
88

269 $
3,277 $
12,666 $

8
127
470

As of December 31, 2012, there are twelve restructured loans with a recorded investment of $6,267,000 included in
the impaired loans table above, as required by GAAP, that management has not internally classified as impaired.
These loans are performing in accordance with their restructured terms such that we expect to recover all loan
principal and interest, however, these loans meet the GAAP definition of a TDR.

Recorded
Investment

(In thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage
Total impaired loans:
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real Estate - construction
Real estate - mortgage

$

$
$
$

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

343 $
5,218
5,652

343 $
6,801
6,032

510
2,838
4,461

510
2,870
4,721

853 $
8,056 $
10,113 $

853 $
9,671 $
10,753 $

December 31, 2011
Recorded
Allowance

— $
—
—
98
213
826
98 $
213 $
826 $

Average
Recorded
Investment

274 $
5,385
6,042

Interest Income
Recognized

13
113
158

1,375
2,809
4,393

54
94
92

1,649 $
8,194 $
10,435 $

67
207
250

As of December 31, 2011, there are nine restructured loans with a recorded investment of $4,160,000 included in the
impaired loans table above, as required by GAAP, that management has not internally classified as impaired. These
loans are performing in accordance with their restructured terms such that we expect to recover all loan principal
and interest, however, these loans meet the GAAP definition of a TDR.
Loans exhibiting one or more of the following attributes are placed on a nonaccrual status:
a.) Principal and/or interest is 90 days or more delinquent, unless the obligation is (i) well secured by collateral
with a realizable value sufficient to discharge the debt including accrued interest in full, and (ii) in the
process of collection, which is reasonably expected to result in repayment of the debt or in its restoration to
a current status.
b.) A borrower’s financial condition has deteriorated to such an extent, or some condition exists, that makes
collection of interest and/or principal in full unlikely in management’s opinion.
c.) Foreclosure or legal action has been initiated as a result of default by the borrower on the terms of the debt.
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The following is a summary of current, past due and nonaccrual loans:
December 31, 2012

(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans

$

$

30-59
Days
Past Due

5 $
––
––
––
666
349
––
1,020 $

60-89
Days
Past Due

Greater than
90 Days
Past Due &
Accruing

60-89
Days
Past Due

Greater than
90 Days
Past Due &
Accruing

–– $
––
––
––
––
422
––
422 $

–– $
––
––
––
––
––
––
–– $

Nonaccrual

50 $
––
4,449
147
2,653
2,133
7
9,439 $

Total Past
Due &
Nonaccrual

55 $
––
4,449
147
3,319
2,904
7
10,881 $

Current
Loans

Total Loans

Current
Loans

Total Loans

11,019 $
3
21,483
10,938
98,359
88,343
1,411
231,556 $

11,074
3
25,932
11,085
101,678
91,247
1,418
242,437

December 31, 2011

(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

$

$

30-59
Days
Past Due

22 $
––
444
––
––
676
––
––
1,142 $

28 $
––
––
53
––
––
––
3
84 $

–– $
––
––
––
––
––
––
––
–– $

Nonaccrual

179 $
––
8,705
73
5,035
1,922
23
––
15,937 $

Total Past
Due &
Nonaccrual

229 $
––
9,149
126
5,035
2,598
23
3
17,163 $

14,810 $
––
30,612
11,476
81,611
97,320
1,520
155
237,504 $

15,039
––
39,761
11,602
86,646
99,918
1,543
158
254,667

Management evaluates all loan relationships periodically in order to assess the financial strength of the borrower and
the value of any underlying collateral. Based on the results of these evaluations, management will assign internal
loan classifications to designate the relative strength of the credit. The internal grades used are Pass, Special
Mention, and Substandard. Within the Pass classification, there are sub grades that range from High to Acceptable,
all of which indicate that the loan is expected to continue to perform in accordance with its terms. Loans with
potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention are classified as Special Mention. If the potential
weakness in a Special Mention loan was to go uncorrected, it could result in deteriorating prospects for continued
loan performance at some future date; however, the loan is not currently adversely classified. The Substandard
classification is assigned to loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of
the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. These loans have a well-defined weakness that jeopardizes the
payment of the debt or the liquidation of the collateral securing the debt, and are characterized by the distinct
possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans classified as Special
Mention or Substandard are subject to increased monitoring by management. This typically includes frequent
contact with the borrower to actively manage the borrowing relationship as needed to rehabilitate or mitigate the
weakness, or potential weakness, identified. At December 31, 2012, the Company had $20,231,000 in loans that
were internally classified as Special Mention or Substandard, of which $10,531,000, or 52%, were either current or
less than 30 days past due. At December 31, 2011, the Company had $38,537,000 in loans that were internally
classified as Special Mention or Substandard, of which $28,141,000, or 73%, were either current or less than 30
days past due.
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A summary of loan credit quality is presented below:
(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

December 31, 2012

$

$

Pass

Special Mention

Pass

Special Mention

10,775 $
3
18,855
10,729
94,537
85,897
1,410
––
222,206 $

249 $
––
––
209
1,509
2,014
1
––
3,982 $

(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Agricultural
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

Substandard

Total

50 $
––
7,077
147
5,632
3,336
7
––
16,249 $

11,074
3
25,932
11,085
101,678
91,247
1,418
––
242,437

December 31, 2011

$

$

14,166 $
––
25,526
11,331
69,713
93,748
1,491
155
216,130 $

216 $
––
483
53
7,065
2,317
12
3
10,149 $

Substandard

Total

657 $
––
13,752
218
9,868
3,853
40
––
28,388 $

15,039
––
39,761
11,602
86,646
99,918
1,543
158
254,667

Risk Elements in the Loan Portfolio
The following is a summary of risk elements in the loan portfolio:
(In thousands)

Commercial and financial
Real estate – construction, commercial
Real estate – construction, residential
Real estate – mortgage, commercial
Real estate – mortgage, residential
Consumer installment loans
Other

$

$

Loans with Interest Only Payments
December 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

3,996
11,318
2,926
11,065
14,823
146
––
44,274

9% $
26%
7%
25%
33%
––%
––%
$

4,827
14,901
2,691
10,143
16,597
128
105
49,392

10%
30%
5%
21%
34%
––%
––%

As shown above, the Bank has a moderate concentration of interest only loans in the portfolio, and such loans are
generally regarded as carrying a higher risk profile than fully amortizing loans. It is important to note that none of
the interest only loans in the portfolio allow negative amortization, nor does the Bank have any loans with
capitalized interest reserves.
Management also monitors and evaluates several other loan portfolio characteristics at a total portfolio level rather
than by major loan category. These characteristics include:
Junior Liens – Loans secured by liens in subordinate positions tend to have a higher risk profile than loans secured
by liens in the first or senior position. At December 31, 2012, the Company held $18,481,000 of loans secured by
junior liens which represents approximately 7.6% of the total net portfolio of loans. At December 31, 2011, the
Company held $21,470,000 of loans secured by junior liens, which represented approximately 8.4% of the total net
loan portfolio.
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High Loan to Value Ratios – Typically the Company will not originate a new loan with a loan to value (LTV) ratio
in excess of 100%. However, declines in collateral values can result in the case of an existing loan renewal with an
LTV ratio in excess of 100% based on the current appraised value of the collateral. In such cases the borrower may
be asked to pledge additional collateral or to renew the loan for a lesser amount. If the borrower lacks the ability to
pay down the loan or provide additional collateral, but has the ability to continue to service the debt, the loan will be
renewed with an LTV ratio in excess of 100%. At December 31, 2012 the loan portfolio included 57 loans with an
aggregate balance of $18,654,000, or 7.7% of the net loan portfolio, with LTV ratios in excess of 100%. At
December 31, 2011 the loan portfolio included 39 loans with an aggregate balance of $12,661,000, or 5.0% of the
net loan portfolio, with LTV ratios in excess of 100%.
Restructured Loans – The following table provides a summary of all loans that are currently designated as
restructured.
December 31, 2012
Troubled debt restructurings

Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real estate – construction
Real estate – mortgage
Total troubled debt restructurings

Number
of loans

1 $
7
13
21 $

Recorded
Investment

83,939 $
3,253,553
5,748,220
9,085,712 $

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

December 31, 2011

83,939
3,436,802
6,068,253
9,588,994

Number
of loans

Recorded
Investment

2 $
342,917 $
9
6,342,581
13
5,062,359
24 $ 11,747,857 $

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

342,917
6,639,087
5,189,288
12,171,292

The following table provides the payment status as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 of all loans that
were restructured in the twelve month periods ending on those respective dates.

Restructured loans less than 30 days past due
Commercial, financial & agricultural
Real estate – construction
Real estate – mortgage
Total restructured loans less than 30 days past due
Restructured loans 30 days or more past due
Real estate – construction
Total restructured loans 30 days or more past due
Restructured loans on nonaccrual
Real estate – mortgage
Total restructured loans on nonaccrual

December 31, 2012
Recorded
Number of
Investment
loans

–– $
––

39

December 31, 2011
Number of
Recorded
loans
Investment

5
5 $

––
––

2,599,635
2,599,635

2$
2
2
6$

347,917
1,173,839
605,321
2,122,077

1
1 $

582,740
582,740

1
1$

53,118
53,118

––
–– $

––
––

6
6$

3,576,390
3,576,390

Management has established an allowance for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged to expense on
the statement of earnings. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are made periodically to maintain the allowance
at an appropriate level based on management’s analysis of the potential risk in the loan portfolio. The allowance for
loan losses represents an amount, which is believed to be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing loans that
may become uncollectible. Management’s judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based
upon a number of assumptions about future events, which are believed to be reasonable, but which may or may not
prove to be accurate. To the extent that the recovery of loan balances has become collateral dependent, the Bank
obtains appraisals not less than annually, and then reduces these appraised values by the amount estimated for
selling and holding costs to determine the liquidated value. Any shortfall between the liquidated value and the loan
balance is charged against the allowance for loan losses in the month the related appraisal was received. Losses will
undoubtedly vary from management estimates, and there is a possibility that charge-offs can reduce this allowance.
Management’s determination of the allowance for loan losses is based on evaluations of the collectability of loans,
including consideration of factors such as the balance of impaired loans, the quality, mix, and size of the overall loan
portfolio, economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, commercial and residential real estate
market trends, the amount and quality of collateral securing the loans, the Bank’s historical loan loss experience, and
a review of specific problem loans. Management also considers subjective issues such as changes in the lending
policies and procedures, changes in the local/national economy, changes in volume or type of credits, changes in
volume/severity of problem loans, quality of loan review and board of director oversight, concentrations of credit,
and peer group comparisons.
An analysis of the activity in the allowance for loan losses is presented below:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Balance, beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Loans charged off
Recoveries of loans previously charged off
Balance, end of year

$

2012

5,221,736
4,083,541
(4,992,174)
366,051
$ 4,679,154

$

$

2011

6,007,690
2,865,039
(4,324,525)
673,532
5,221,736

The following tables provide additional information concerning changes to the allowance for loan losses within
major loan categories:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(In thousands)

Allowance balance, beginning of year $
Loans charged off
Recoveries
Provision for loan losses
Allowance balance, end of period
$
Allowance for loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Allowance for loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Total allowance for loan losses
Loans individually evaluated for
impairment
Loans collectively evaluated for
impairment
Total loans

$

Commercial,
Financial &
Agricultural

Real Estate Construction

Real Estate
- Mortgage

37

135

1,010

––

––

1,182

566
603

590
725

2,057
3,067

20
20

264
264

3,497
4,679

256

3,334

11,354

––

––

14,944

10,821
11,077 $

33,683
37,017 $

181,571
192,925 $

644 $
(165)
48
76
603 $

1,231 $
(2,103)
221
1,376
725 $

40

3,041 $
(2,636)
87
2,575
3,067$

Consumer

26 $
(88)
9
73
20 $

1,418
1,418 $

Unallocated

280 $
––
––
(16)
264 $

––
–– $

Total

5,222
(4,992)
365
4,084
4,679

227,493
242,437

(In thousands)

Allowance balance, beginning of year $
Loans charged off
Recoveries
Provision for loan losses
Allowance balance, end of period
$
Allowance for loans individually
evaluated for impairment
Allowance for loans collectively
evaluated for impairment
Total allowance for loan losses
Loans individually evaluated for
impairment
Loans collectively evaluated for
impairment
Total loans

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Commercial,
Financial &
Agricultural

Real Estate Construction

Real Estate
- Mortgage

98

213

826

––

––

1,137

546
644

1,018
1,231

2,215
3,041

26
26

280
280

4,085
5,222

853

8,056

10,113

––

––

19,022

14,186
15,039 $

43,307
51,363 $

176,451
186,564 $

$

543 $
(649)
30
720
644 $

358 $
(1,888)
250
2,511
1,231 $

4,042 $
(1,788)
387
400
3,041$

Consumer

326 $
––
7
(307)
26 $

Unallocated

739 $
––
––
(459)
280 $

1,701
1,701 $

––
–– $

Total

6,008
(4,325)
674
2,865
5,222

235,645
254,667

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to certain directors, executive officers and their
affiliates. The interest rates on these loans were substantially the same as rates prevailing at the time of the
transaction and repayment terms are customary for the type of loan. Changes in related-party loans are summarized
as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Balance, beginning of year
Advances
Repayments
Transactions due to changes in related parties
Balance, end of year
Note 5.

2012

$

2,689,112
2,498,884
(679,699)

$

4,508,297

––

2011

$ 6,881,572
768,469
(890,506)
(4,070,423)
$ 2,689,112

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows:
December 31,
2012

Land
Building
Furniture and equipment

$ 3,648,350
4,342,724
3,098,584
11,089,658
(3,801,624)
$ 7,288,034

Less accumulated depreciation

2011

$ 3,648,350
4,275,313
3,233,378
11,157,041
(3,847,958)
$ 7,309,083

In 2011, the Bank entered into a three-year lease for rental space for a wholesale mortgage office in Atlanta,
Georgia.
The Bank has operating leases for rental space in Port Royal, South Carolina, Jacksonville, Florida and Savannah,
Georgia. All three of these leases are cancelable at any time, with four months notice required for the Jacksonville
office.
The Bank also has operating leases for rental space for each of the retail residential mortgage loan production offices
opened during 2011 and 2012. Each of these leases is cancelable at any time, or transferable upon disassociation
with the Bank.
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At December 31, 2012, future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating leases with initial or
remaining terms of one year or more are as follows:
2013
2014

$ 361,020
114,229
$ 475,249

Total rental expense amounted to $1,080,707 and $685,908 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, under both cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases.
Note 6.

Other real estate owned

A summary of other real estate owned is presented as follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2012

Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Valuation write downs and losses on sales
Balance, end of year

$ 15,423,903
6,692,732
(5,833,451)
(2,762,432)
$ 13,520,752

2011

$ 14,452,043
12,487,368
(8,146,338)
(3,369,170)
$ 15,423,903

Expenses related to other real estate owned include the following:
Years Ended December 31,
2012

Net loss on sales of real estate
Valuation write downs
Operating expenses
Total expenses related to other real estate owned

$ 1,209,079
1,553,353
636,347
$ 3,398,779

2011

$ 1,444,858
1,924,312
734,088
$ 4,103,258

The Bank’s special asset group is charged with the administration and liquidation of other real estate owned. Our
approach has been to manage each property individually in such a way as to maximize our net proceeds upon sale.
Management continues to evaluate other methods to liquidate these properties more quickly, but such methods
typically result in a much lower recovery relative to the original loan amount. Management attempts to balance the
desire to aggressively drive down the level of nonperforming assets with the objective to maximize recovery levels
from liquidation of these assets.
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Note 7.

Intangible Assets

Following is a summary of information related to intangible assets:
December 31,

Core deposit premiums
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount

2012

2011

$ 1,212,435
(1,207,340)
$
5,095

$ 1,212,435
(1,189,784)
$
22,651

December 31,
2012

Loan servicing rights
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount

$
$

988,304
(107,372)
880,932

2011

$
$

513,046
(16,993)
496,053

Prior to 2011, the Company did not recognize an asset for the value of Loan Servicing Rights (LSR) on the portion
of Small Business Administration loans that were participated (sold) to other institutions and serviced by the
Company. The value of LSRs currently reported, therefore, relates only to SBA loans that were participated and
sold to others since the beginning of 2011. LSRs are carried at original fair value, as determined by an independent
evaluation, less accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded over the expected life of the loan as a
component of SBA loan income. The LSR asset is evaluated for impairment at the end of each quarter, by obtaining
a revised fair value from an independent third party. As of December 31, 2012, the fair value of the SBA LSRs
exceeded net book value. The related balance of SBA loans participated and serviced for others was $40,794,000 at
December 31, 2012, and $21,890,000 at December 31, 2011.
The aggregate amortization expense for core deposit premiums was $18,000 and $40,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The estimated remaining amortization expense for core deposit premiums is as follows:
2013
Note 8.

$

5,095

Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was
$118,511,000 and $132,383,000, respectively. The Bank held $19,788,000 and $23,877,000 in brokered deposits
included in time deposits as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2012 are as follows:
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 and later

$ 139,428,694
32,338,759
13,578,589
2,560,715
4,140,602
$ 192,047,359

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, overdraft demand deposits reclassified to loans totaled $40,441 and $14,702,
respectively.
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Note 9. Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are secured borrowings, generally mature within thirty days
from the transaction date. Securities sold under agreement to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received
in connection with the transactions. The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on the fair
value of the underlying securities. The Company monitors the fair value of the underlying securities on a daily
basis. Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at December 31, 2012 were $6,055,000. Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase at December 31, 2011 were $8,766,000
Note 10. Employee Benefit Plans
The Company sponsors the Coastal Banking Company Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (the “Plan”) for the
benefit of all eligible employees. All full-time and part-time employees are eligible to participate in the Plan
provided they have met the eligibility requirements. Contributions may begin after 30 days of employment. Parttime employees must work a minimum of 1,000 hours per year to be eligible. The Plan allows a participant to defer
a portion of his compensation and provides that the Company will match a portion of the deferred compensation.
Company matched contributions are vested over a five year period. The Company contributes to the Plan annually.
Contributions made to the Plan in 2012 and 2011 totaled $407,280 and $229,129, respectively.
Note 11.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company adopted a Director and Executive Officer Deferred Compensation Plan in 2004 that allows directors
and executive officers to defer compensation. Interest accrues monthly on deferred amounts at a rate, which is equal
to the current money market rate offered by the Bank. Accrued deferred compensation of $19,426 and $19,357 is
included in other liabilities at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The Company adopted a pension plan in 2004 that provides a defined benefit payable to executive officers upon
retirement or reaching a specific age. This benefit is held in a trust, and therefore the Company does not carry a
liability related to this plan. The Company makes annual contributions of $98,540 to fund the trust from which this
benefit will be paid.
The Company adopted a pension plan in 2009 that provides a defined benefit payable monthly for 15 years to
executive officers upon reaching the age of 68. The Company funds this benefit from its investment in life
insurance policies on participating executive officers. Accrued benefits under this plan are included in other
liabilities, and were $159,288 and $115,846 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Note 12.

Other Borrowings

Other borrowings consist of the following FHLB advances.

Type advance

Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Convertible fixed rate advance
Variable rate overnight advance
Total

Balance

Interest rate

$ 5,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
2,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000
37,427,609
$ 81,427,609
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FHLB Advances Outstanding
December 31, 2012
Maturity date
Convertible date

0.21%
January 7, 2013
0.19%
January 14, 2013
0.17%
January 22, 2013
0.24%
January 28, 2013
4.25%
May 21, 2014
3.71%
June 24, 2015
3.69% September 7, 2017
0.72%
1.23%

March 7, 2013

Type advance

Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Variable rate
Variable rate
Variable rate
Fixed rate
Convertible fixed rate advance
Fixed rate
Fixed rate
Convertible fixed rate advance
Variable rate overnight advance
Total

Balance

Interest rate

$ 4,500,000
8,000,000
10,000,000
5,400,000
4,850,000
7,809,000
818,000
2,070,000
2,500,000
1,500,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
$ 68,447,000

FHLB Advances Outstanding
December 31, 2011
Maturity date
Convertible date

0.13%
January 5, 2012
0.14%
January 27, 2012
0.14%
January 30, 2012
0.13%
February 1, 2012
0.12% February 14, 2012
0.86%
March 26, 2012
0.86%
March 27, 2012
0.86%
March 28, 2012
3.30%
April 9, 2012
4.05% September 7, 2012
4.25%
May 21, 2014
3.71%
June 24, 2015
3.69% September 7, 2017
0.36%
1.43%

March 7, 2012
March 7, 2012

The Bank maintains relationships with correspondent banks that can provide funds on short notice, if needed.
Presently, the Bank has arrangements with commercial banks for short term unsecured advances of overnight
borrowings of up to $22,500,000, in addition to up to $4,000,000 available for day light overdraft. The Bank also
has reverse repurchase accommodations with a term of up to one month for a maximum advance of $25 million,
limited by the amount of eligible securities pledged, which was $6.1 million at December 31, 2012. The reverse
repurchase agreements are committed borrowing facilities granted by other commercial banks and are secured by
securities in the Bank’s investment portfolio.
At December 31, 2012, the Bank pledged $131,727,000 of its portfolio loans to FHLB and could borrow up to
$101,607,000 on such collateral. The Bank had also pledged $34,871,000 of its portfolio loans to the Federal
Reserve Bank of Atlanta at December 31, 2012 and could borrow up to $24,451,000 on such collateral at the
Discount Window. At December 31, 2011 the Bank has pledged $128,017,000 of its portfolio loans and loans
available for sale to the FHLB and can borrow up to $93,420,000 on such collateral. The Bank has also pledged
$36,007,000 of its portfolio loans to the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta at December 31, 2011 and can borrow up
to $24,500,000 on such collateral at the Discount Window.
During the third quarter of 2011, the Bank requested and obtained a $2 million letter of credit from the FHLB to be
issued in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, a major purchaser of the Bank’s mortgage loans available for sale. Consistent
with the growth in residential mortgage banking origination levels, there was an increase in the level of mandatory
forward loan sale commitments between the Bank and Wells Fargo Bank. As a result, Wells Fargo was exposed to
an increasing level of credit risk in the event that the Bank failed to deliver loans for sale under these commitments,
and a letter of credit was required to mitigate that credit risk. While this letter of credit had no impact on the level of
borrowings outstanding, it is collateralized by loans and securities pledged to the FHLB, and as such it has reduced
the Bank’s borrowing capacity with the FHLB by $2 million.
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Note 13.

Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Currently payable
Deferred tax benefit
Change in valuation allowance

$
$

2012

2011

(345,550) $
1,922,163
(19,202)
1,557,411 $

(407,856)
439,111
(80,457)
(49,202)

The Company’s income tax expense (benefits) differ from the amounts computed by applying the federal income tax
statutory rates to income (loss) before income taxes. A reconciliation of the differences is as follows:
For the Years Ended December 31,

Tax at federal income tax rate
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Personnel expense excluded due to TARP participation
Deferred tax valuation allowance
Tax exempt interest
Other

2012

$

1,169,959

$

462,400
(19,202)
(54,266)
(1,480)
1,557,411 $

2011

$

104,727
––
(80,457)
(81,192)
7,720
(49,202)

Net deferred tax assets are included in other assets. The components of deferred income taxes are as follows:
December 31,
2012

Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating losses
Loan loss reserves
Other real estate owned
Other
Total deferred tax assets

$

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred loan costs
Depreciation and amortization
Intangible assets
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax liabilities

1,906,837
244,586
881,957
1,121,195
4,154,575

2011

$

1,091,793
118,989
46,656
195,696
1,726,573
3,179,707

Net deferred tax asset

$

974,868

3,089,989
716,311
778,896
944,867
5,530,063
847,425
144,011
91,517
308,478
1,745,775
3,137,206

$

2,392,857

The federal income tax returns of the Company for 2011, 2010, and 2009 are subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after they were filed.
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Note 14.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

In May 2004, Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust I (the “Trust I”) (a non-consolidated subsidiary) issued
$3,000,000 of floating rate trust preferred securities with a maturity of July 23, 2034. The Company received from
the Trust I the $3,000,000 proceeds from the issuance of securities and the $93,000 initial proceeds from the capital
investment in the Trust I, and accordingly has shown the funds due to the Trust I as $3,093,000 junior subordinated
debentures.
All of the common securities of the Trust I are owned by the Company. The proceeds from the issuance of the trust
preferred securities were used by the Trust I to purchase $3,093,000 of junior subordinated debentures of the
Company, which carry a floating rate equal to the 3-month LIBOR plus 2.75%. At December 31, 2012, this rate was
3.05%. The proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the junior subordinated debentures were used to
strengthen the capital position of the Bank and to accommodate current and future growth. The current regulatory
rules allow certain amounts of junior subordinated debentures to be included in the calculation of regulatory capital,
and have been included in the Tier I calculation accordingly. The debentures and related accrued interest represent
the sole assets of the Trust.
The trust preferred securities accrue and pay distributions quarterly, equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 2.75% per annum
of the stated liquidation value of $1,000 per capital security. The Company has entered into contractual
arrangements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guarantee payment of: (i) accrued and unpaid
distributions required to be paid on the trust preferred securities; (ii) the redemption price with respect to any trust
preferred securities called for redemption by the Trust I, and (iii) payments due upon a voluntary or involuntary
dissolution, winding up, or liquidation of the Trust I.
The trust preferred securities must be redeemed upon maturity of the debentures on July 23, 2034, or upon earlier
redemption as provided in the indenture. The Company has the right to redeem the debentures purchased by the
Trust I in whole or in part, on or after July 23, 2009. As specified in the indenture, if the debentures are redeemed
prior to maturity, the redemption price will be the unpaid principal amount, plus any accrued unpaid interest.
Pursuant to the terms of the junior subordinated debentures held by Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust I, the
Company has the option to defer distributions on such securities at any time, and from time to time, for a period not
to exceed twenty consecutive quarters. During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company elected to defer the interest
payments on its trust preferred securities. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Company is
prohibited from paying interest on its trust preferred securities absent prior written approval from the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond. The Company received written non-objection from FRB Richmond to pay all interest
accrued and payable as of December 30, 2012 as well as the following quarterly interest payment, payable in April
2013.
In June 2006, Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust II (the “Trust II”) (a non-consolidated subsidiary) issued
$4,000,000 of fixed to floating rate trust preferred securities with a maturity of September 30, 2036. The Company
received from the Trust II the $4,000,000 proceeds from the issuance of securities and the $124,000 initial proceeds
from the capital investment in the Trust II, and accordingly has shown the funds due to the Trust II as $4,124,000
junior subordinated debentures.
All of the common securities of the Trust II are owned by the Company. The proceeds from the issuance of the trust
preferred securities were used by the Trust II to purchase $4,124,000 of junior subordinated debentures of the
Company, which carried a fixed rate of 7.18% until September 30, 2011 and a floating rate equal to the 3-month
LIBOR plus 1.60%, adjusted quarterly thereafter. At December 31, 2012, this rate was 1.91%. The proceeds
received by the Company from the sale of the junior subordinated debentures were used to strengthen the capital
position of the Bank and to accommodate current and future growth. The current regulatory rules allow certain
amounts of junior subordinated debentures to be included in the calculation of regulatory capital, and have been
included in the Tier I calculation accordingly. The debentures and related accrued interest represent the sole assets
of the Trust II.
The trust preferred securities accrue and pay distributions quarterly, equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 1.60% per annum
of the stated liquidation value of $1,000 per capital security. The Company has entered into contractual
arrangements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guarantee payment of: (i) accrued and unpaid
distributions required to be paid on the trust preferred securities; (ii) the redemption price with respect to any trust
preferred securities called for redemption by the Trust II, and (iii) payments due upon a voluntary or involuntary
dissolution, winding up, or liquidation of the Trust II.
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The trust preferred securities must be redeemed upon maturity of the debentures on September 30, 2036, or upon
earlier redemption as provided in the indenture. The Company has the right to redeem the debentures purchased by
the Trust II in whole or in part, on or after September 30, 2011. As specified in the indenture, if the debentures are
redeemed prior to maturity, the redemption price will be the unpaid principal amount, plus any accrued unpaid
interest.
Pursuant to the terms of the junior subordinated debentures held by Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust II,
the Company has the option to defer distributions on such securities at any time, and from time to time, for a period
not to exceed twenty consecutive quarters. During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company elected to defer the
interest payments on its trust preferred securities. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Company is
prohibited from paying interest on its trust preferred securities absent prior written approval from the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond. The Company received written non-objection from FRB Richmond to pay all interest
accrued and payable as of January 23, 2013 as well as the following quarterly interest payment, payable in April
2013.
Note 15.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company adopted a Stock Incentive Plan in 2000 which currently authorizes 390,265 shares of the Company’s
common stock for issuance under the Plan. The Plan provides for the total number of shares authorized for issuance
under the Plan to be increased upon the issuance of new shares by the Company by an amount equal to the
difference between 15% of the total outstanding shares after the issuance of the new shares and the number of shares
authorized for issuance prior to the issuance of the new shares. The Plan is administered by the Board of Directors
and provides for the granting of options to purchase shares of common stock to officers, directors, employees or
consultants of the Company and Bank. The exercise price of each option granted under the Plan will not be less than
the fair market value of the shares of common stock subject to the option on the date of grant as determined by the
Board of Directors. Options are exercisable in whole or in part upon such terms as may be determined by the Board
of Directors, and are exercisable no later than ten years after the date of grant. Options granted under the Plan
generally vest over a five-year vesting period. Pursuant to the Plan, no Incentive Stock Option may be granted more
than ten years after February 15, 2000, the effective date of the Plan. As of December 31, 2012, there were 121,362
shares available for grant under this Plan as non-qualified stock options.
Additionally, the Company assumed the outstanding options under the 1999 First Capital Bank Holding Corporation
Stock Option Plan (the “First Capital Plan”) in connection with the merger of First Capital Bank Holding Company
with and into the Company on October 1, 2005. As a result of the merger, each outstanding option under the First
Capital Plan was converted into an option to purchase Coastal Banking Company, Inc. common stock. Coastal
assumed and maintains the First Capital Plan solely to administer the options that were outstanding as of the
effective time of the merger. As of the effective time of the merger, the Company elected to discontinue the
issuance of options under the First Capital Plan.
On August 24, 2011, the Company granted a restricted stock award to Michael G. Sanchez, Chief Executive Officer,
for 6,500 shares of the Company’s common stock. The restricted stock vests and becomes transferable on the later
of the date when the Company has fully repaid all obligations under the TARP Capital Purchase Program or the two
year anniversary date of the grant date of the restricted stock. The restricted stock was granted to Mr. Sanchez as
compensation for his service to the Company. The ultimate cost to the Company from this grant will be $14,300,
and will be expensed between August 24, 2011 and August 24, 2013.
On May 26, 2010, the Company granted a restricted stock award to Michael G. Sanchez, Chief Executive Officer,
for 20,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The restricted stock vests and becomes transferable on the later
of the date when the Company has fully repaid all obligations under the TARP Capital Purchase Program or the two
year anniversary date of the grant date of the restricted stock. The restricted stock was granted to Mr. Sanchez as
compensation for his service to the Company. The ultimate cost to the Company from this grant was $68,000, and
was expensed between May 26, 2010 and May 26, 2012.
On May 26, 2010, the Company granted non-qualified stock options to all full time employees for a total of 126,000
options. The options vest over a five year period beginning on May 26, 2010. The ultimate cost to the Company
from this grant will be impacted by future option forfeitures, but in any case will not exceed $175,492, and will be
expensed between May 26, 2010 and the last vesting date of May 26, 2015.
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On August 15, 2008, the Board of Directors of Coastal Banking Company approved a reduction in the exercise price
of 42,603 incentive stock options that were previously issued and outstanding. The options had been issued to 14
officers and employees of the Company with an average exercise price of $19.26 per share. The new exercise price
was $7.50 per share, the market value of the Company's common stock on the day the lower exercise price was set
by the Board action. The ultimate full cost to the Company was $63,075, and was expensed over the period
beginning on August 15, 2008 and ending on December 31, 2012.
On March 21, 2008, the Company granted a restricted stock award to Gary Horn, Regional President of Lowcountry
National Bank, for 5,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The restricted stock vests in five equal annual
increments on the anniversary date of the grant date of the restricted stock. The restricted stock was granted to Mr.
Horn as compensation for his service to the Bank. The ultimate cost to the Company from this grant will be $68,750,
and will be expensed between March 21, 2008 and March 21, 2013.
The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions for grants in 2012. No options were granted during 2011.
Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The Company has not and does not
expect to pay a dividend to common shareholders in the near future. Historical data is used to estimate option
exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual
life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
For the Years Ended December 31,

Weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the year
Assumptions used to estimate fair value:
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Expected life

$

2012

1.25

2011

$

1.41%
0%
38%
7 years

—
—
—
—
—

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2012 is as follows:
Options Outstanding
Average
Remaining
Option
Life
Shares
(In Years)
Outstanding

2,324
11,576
39,453
11,619
3,000
10,222
99,540
500
178,234

0.3
0.4
4.3
4.5
6.0
6.8
7.4
9.2
5.9

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$

11.84
10.65
7.50
19.05
5.31
3.63
3.40
3.00
5.95

Options Fully Vested and Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Exercise
Number
Price
Exercisable

2,324
11,576
39,453
11,619
2,400
6,132
35,880
—
109,384
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$

11.84
10.65
7.50
19.05
5.31
3.63
3.40
—
7.54

Options Expected to Vest
Weighted
Average
Number
Exercise
Expected
Price
To Vest

—
—
—
—
600
4,090
63,660
500
68,850

$

—
—
—
—
5.31
3.63
3.40
3.00
3.43

A summary status of the Company’s stock option plan as of December 31, 2012 and changes during the year is
presented below:

Shares

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Forfeited or expired during the year
Outstanding, end of year
Options exercisable at year end

212,211 $
500
(6,560)
(27,917)
178,234
109,384

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term (years)

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

6.09
3.00
3.40
7.51
5.95
7.54

6.5 $

5.9
5.0

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

—

146,703
154,536

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2012 was $8,856. No options
were exercised in 2011.
A summary of the Company’s restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2012 and changes during the year is
presented below:
Number of
Shares

Nonvested restricted shares, December 31, 2011
Granted
Vested
Nonvested restricted shares, December 31, 2012

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Value

28,500 $
—
(1,000)
27,500 $

3.85
—
13.75
3.49

It is the Company’s policy to issue new shares for stock option exercises and restricted stock rather than issue
treasury shares. The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the
options’ related vesting term. As of December 31, 2012, there was $120,143 of total unrecognized compensation
cost related to nonvested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $70,896 and $147,881, respectively.
Note 16.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Loan Commitments
We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of our customers. These financial instruments consist of commitments to extend credit, standby
letters of credit and loans sold with representations and warranties. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to
lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Standby letters of
credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of
a fee. A commitment involves, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the balance sheet. Our exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the
instrument is represented by the contractual notional amount of the instrument.
Since certain commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. We use the same credit policies in making commitments to extend
credit as we do for on-balance sheet instruments. Collateral held for commitments to extend credit varies but may
include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant, equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.
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Loans on one-to-four family residential mortgages originated by us are sold to various other financial institutions
with representations and warranties that are usual and customary for the industry. In addition to these representations
and warranties, our loan sale contracts define a condition in which the borrower fails to make any one of the first
four loan payments within 30 days of the due date as an Early Payment Default (“EPD”). In the event of an EPD
occurrence, we are required to return the premium paid by the investor for the loan as well as pay certain
administrative fees. In the event of a breach of any of the representations and warranties related to a loan sold, we
could be liable for damages to the investor up to and including a “make whole” demand that involves, at the
investor’s option, either reimbursing the investor for actual losses incurred on the loan or repurchasing the loan in
full. Our maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of a loan repurchase related to a make whole claim would be
the unpaid principal balance of the loan to be repurchased along with any premium paid by the investor when the
loan was purchased and other minor collection cost reimbursements.
From the September 2007 inception of the mortgage banking division through December 31, 2012, we have sold
over 23,700 residential mortgage loans into the secondary market with a principal balance of just over $5.1 billion.
From this population of sold loans, the Bank has received notification from purchasers of a total of twenty-five EPD
claims, three in 2008, seven in 2009, three in 2010, one in 2011, and eleven in 2012. Beyond the initial payment to
the purchasers of $123,000 upon receipt of the EPD claims, the maximum remaining exposure under investor claims
of a representation and warranty breach would be the difference between the total loan amount and the liquidated
value of the underlying collateral. In the case of our twenty-five EPD claims received since the inception of
mortgage banking operations, the aggregate loan balance was $4,758,000 and consisted of 25 single family
residences. Original loan-to-value ratios ranged from 65% to 98%, and loans with a loan-to-value ratio over 80%
have a mortgage insurance policy in place. If repurchase was required in the future, management believes that the
potential amount of loss would not be material and that sufficient reserves exist to fully absorb any loss.
Management does not anticipate any material credit risk related to potential EPD claims on loans that have been
previously sold and are no longer on the Bank’s balance sheet. Because the risk of an EPD claim only exists during
the first four payments after a loan is originated, the Bank reports the total of the most recent four months mortgage
banking lending volume as off-balance sheet credit risk from EPD claims. As of December 31, 2012, the total offbalance sheet credit risk from EPD claims was $595,314,000.
As discussed above, the representations and warranties in loan sale agreements provide that the Bank repurchase
loans or indemnify the investors for losses or costs on loans sold under certain limited conditions. Some of these
conditions include underwriting errors or omissions, fraud or material misstatements by the borrower in the loan
application, or invalid market value on the collateral property due to deficiencies in the appraisal. From the total
population of sold loans, in five years of operations the Bank has been required to settle fourteen make whole claims
at a cost of $1,611,000, and has repurchased three loans totaling $1,110,000. Of the three repurchased loans, one
has been paid off, and the other two are current and performing in accordance with their loan terms.
Management has recognized the potential risk from costs related to EPD claims and breaches of representations and
warranties made in connection with residential loan sales. Nationally the industry has seen a significant increase in
the level of loan “put backs” to lenders on the basis of representation and warranty breaches. It is noteworthy that
the Bank’s loan sale activity began in late 2007 at a time when underwriting requirements had changed and limited
documentation conventional (non-government insured) loans were no longer eligible for purchase in the secondary
market. Accordingly, the population of conventional loans the Bank has sold was underwritten based on fully
documented information. While this will not eliminate all risk of repurchase or indemnification costs, management
believes it significantly mitigates that risk as evidenced by the relatively insignificant level of repurchase and
indemnification costs incurred to date.
In recognition of risk from potential EPD claims and breaches of representations and warranties, an indemnification
reserve has been established and maintained since mortgage banking loan sales began in late 2007 to cover potential
costs. We have limited history of costs incurred, so additions to the reserve are made monthly based on a percentage
of loan balances sold that month. This approach recognizes that the risk of indemnification costs will rise in relation
to the level of loans sold. The balance in this indemnification reserve was $2,068,000 at December 31, 2012 and
based on the Company’s modest historical loss experience and the current level of indemnification claims under
review, management believes this level of reserve is adequate for potential exposure in connection with loan sale
indemnification or EPD claims. However, we can provide no assurance that our methodology will not change and
that the balance of this indemnification reserve will prove sufficient to cover actual costs in the future.
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The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and loans sold with representations and warranties is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. In most cases, the Bank
requires collateral to support financial instruments with credit risk.
The following table summarizes our off-balance-sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit
risk as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011:
December 31,
2012

Commitments to extend credit
Standby letters of credit
Loans sold with representations and warranties

2011

$ 17,916,000 $ 15,980,000
$
67,000 $
57,000
$ 595,314,000 $448,104,000

Contingencies
The Company has, from time to time, various lawsuits and claims arising from the conduct of its business. Such
items are not expected to have any material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.
Note 17.

Concentrations of Credit

The Bank makes commercial, residential, construction, agricultural, agribusiness and consumer loans to customers
in South Carolina, Florida, and Georgia. A majority of the Company's customers' abilities to honor their contracts is
dependent on the business economy in the geographical area served by the Bank.
95 percent of the Company's loans are secured by real estate in the Company's primary market area. Accordingly,
the ultimate collectability of a majority of the Company's loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in real estate
conditions in the Company's primary market area.
Note 18.

Shareholders’ Equity and Regulatory Matters

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial
statements. Under certain adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices must be met. The capital amounts and classification are also subject
to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Total and Tier 1 Capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 Capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined).
Management believes, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, that the Company and the Bank exceed all capital
adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
As of December 31, 2012, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized
the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set
forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed
the Bank’s category. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.
In addition to the foregoing regulatory capital requirements, in light of current market conditions and the Bank’s
current risk profile, the Bank has determined that it must achieve and maintain a minimum ratio of total capital to
risk-weighted assets of 12% and a minimum leverage ratio of 8% to be considered well capitalized.
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The actual capital amounts and ratios are also presented in the table below.

As of December 31, 2012:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank
Tier I Capital to Average Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank

As of December 31, 2011:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank
Tier I Capital to Average Assets
Consolidated
CBC National Bank

Actual
Amount

Ratio

For Capital
Adequacy Purposes
Amount
Ratio

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions
Amount
Ratio

$44,257,266
$45,134,779

18.84% $18,796,922
19.21% $18,797,440

8.00%
---N/A--8.00% $23,496,800

10.00%

$41,273,266
$42,150,779

17.57% $ 9,398,461
17.94% $ 9,398,720

4.00%
---N/A--4.00% $14,098,080

6.00%

$41,273,266
$42,150,779

9.79% $16,861,597
10.00% $16,861,636

4.00%
---N/A--4.00% $21,077,045

5.00%

Actual
Amount

Ratio

For Capital
Adequacy Purposes
Amount
Ratio

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions
Amount
Ratio

$41,591,729
$41,256,827

16.47% $20,197,195
16.34% $20,198,400

8.00%
---N/A--8.00% $25,248,000

10.00%

$38,400,646
$38,065,744

15.21% $10,098,597
15.08% $10,099,200

4.00%
---N/A--4.00% $15,148,800

6.00%

$38,400,646
$38,065,744

8.46% $18,152,380
8.39% $18,152,920

4.00%
---N/A--4.00% $22,691,150

5.00%

There are no current plans to initiate payment of common stock cash dividends and future dividend policy will
depend on the Bank’s and the Company’s earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other factors
considered relevant by the Company’s Board of Directors. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the MOU entered
into with the Federal Reserve Board, the Company is prohibited from paying dividends on its capital stock,
including its common stock and TARP preferred stock, absent prior regulatory approval. Additionally, the Bank is
restricted in its ability to pay dividends under national banking laws and regulations of the OCC. Generally, these
restrictions require the Bank to pay dividends derived solely from net profits. The OCC’s prior approval is also
required if dividends declared by the Bank in any calendar year exceed the Bank’s net profit for that year combined
with its retained net profits for the preceding two years.
On December 5, 2008, Coastal issued and sold 9,950 preferred shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series A (the “TARP preferred stock”), along with a Warrant to purchase common stock to the United States
Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”) as part of the Capital Purchase Program (“CPP”). The Treasury’s
investment in Coastal is part of the government’s program to provide capital to the healthy financial institutions that
are the core of the nation’s economy in order to increase the flow of credit to consumers and businesses and provide
additional assistance to distressed homeowners facing foreclosure. The TARP preferred stock has an annual 5%
cumulative preferred dividend rate, payable quarterly. The dividend rate increases to 9% after February 14, 2014.
Dividends compound if they accrue in arrears.
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The Board has approved and Coastal paid all dividends on the TARP preferred through November 15, 2010.
However, pursuant to the MOU entered into with the Federal Reserve Board, the Company is prohibited from
paying dividends on its TARP preferred stock without prior regulatory approval. As a result of the Federal Reserve
Board objection, the eight quarterly dividends due since November 15, 2010 through the end of 2012 have been
deferred. Subsequent to December 31, 2012 the Federal Reserve Board issued a non-objection to the payment of
three TARP preferred stock dividends on February 15, 2013. The Board approved and Coastal paid three TARP
preferred dividends totaling $373,125 on February 15, 2013, the current TARP dividend due on that date and two of
the eight previously deferred TARP dividends together with interest accrued on all previously deferred dividends.
Cash dividends on the TARP preferred stock are cumulative and accrue and compound on each subsequent payment
date. At December 31, 2012, we had deferred TARP preferred stock dividends payments of $995,000, plus interest
on the deferred dividends of $51,279. If we defer six or more quarterly dividend payments on the TARP preferred
stock, whether or not consecutive, the Treasury will have the right to appoint two directors to Coastal’s board of
directors until all accrued but unpaid dividends have been paid. The Treasury has made no indication to the
Company of its desire or intent to exercise this right and appoint directors to the board.
The TARP preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share plus accrued dividends. The TARP
preferred stock has no redemption date and is not subject to any sinking fund. The TARP preferred stock carries
certain restrictions. The TARP preferred stock ranks senior to our common stock and also provides certain
limitations on compensation arrangements of executive officers. During the first three years, Coastal may not
reinstate a cash dividend on its common shares nor purchase equity shares without the approval of the U.S.
Treasury, subject to certain limited exceptions. Coastal may not reinstate a cash dividend on its common shares to
the extent preferred dividends remain unpaid. Generally, the TARP preferred stock is non-voting. However, should
Coastal fail to pay six quarterly dividends, the holder may elect two directors to the Company’s Board of Directors
until such dividends are paid. In connection with the issuance of the TARP preferred stock, a Warrant to purchase
205,579 common shares was issued with an exercise price of $7.26 per share, which was calculated based upon the
average closing prices of our common stock on the 20 trading days ending on the last trading day prior to the date
that our application was approved to participate in the TARP Capital Purchase Program. The Warrant is immediately
exercisable and expires in ten years. The Warrant is subject to a proportionate anti-dilution adjustment in the event
of stock dividends or splits, among other events.
The fair value of the warrant grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following assumptions. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The
Company has not and does not expect to pay a dividend to common shareholders in the near future. The risk-free
rate for periods within the contractual life of the option was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the
time of grant.

Fair value of warrants
Assumptions used to estimate fair value:
Risk-free interest rate
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Expected life

$

2008

1.90

2.20 %
0%
27 %
10 years

The TARP preferred stock and Warrant qualify as Tier 1 capital and are presented in permanent equity on the
Consolidated Statement of Condition in the amounts of $9,725,775 and $501,475, respectively. Proceeds were
allocated between TARP preferred stock and Warrants based on the proportional fair value of each. The fair value
of the TARP preferred stock was calculated using a discounted cash flow model assuming a five year life, a 5%
dividend rate and a comparable discount interest rate of 12%. The Preferred Share discount is being amortized over
five years.
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On August 26, 2009, the Bank entered into a formal agreement with the OCC (the “Agreement”). The Agreement
contains certain operational and financial restrictions, which address the concerns identified in the Bank’s report of
examination. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Bank has prepared and provided written plans and/or reports
on the following items: reducing the high level of credit risk in the Bank; taking immediate and continuing action to
protect the Bank’s interest in criticized assets; ensuring the Bank’s adherence to its written profit plan to improve
and sustain earnings; limiting brokered deposits, excluding reciprocal CDARS, that would cause the Bank’s level of
brokered deposits to be in excess of ten percent of total deposits; and establishing a Compliance Committee to
monitor the Bank’s adherence to the Agreement.
On January 27, 2010, pursuant to a request by the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond, the board of directors of
Coastal Banking Company, Inc. adopted a resolution, which provided that the Company must obtain prior approval
of the Federal Reserve Board before incurring additional debt, purchasing or redeeming its capital stock, or
declaring or paying dividends, excluding dividends on preferred stock related to our participation in the TARP CPP.
On November 17, 2010, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding, an informal enforcement
action, with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond in lieu of the board resolution adopted on January 27, 2010. The
terms of the MOU are substantially similar to those of the board resolution and require the Company to obtain prior
approval of the Federal Reserve Board before incurring additional debt, purchasing or redeeming its capital stock, or
declaring or paying cash dividends, including dividends on its TARP preferred stock, and paying interest on its trust
preferred securities. Additionally, the MOU requires the Company to comply with banking regulations that prohibit
certain indemnification and severance payments and require prior approval of any appointment of new directors or
the hiring or change in position of any senior executive officers of the Company. The MOU also requires the
submission of quarterly progress reports.
Note 19.

Fair Value

Determination of Fair Value
The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures. In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic (FASB
ASC 820), the fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between willing market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices
for the Company’s various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values
are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected
by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.
The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an orderly
transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between willing market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level
of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques may
be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market participants would transact at the
measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of
significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions.
Fair Value Hierarchy
In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally
measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the
reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.
Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities generally include debt and
equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations are obtained from readily available
pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.
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Level 2 - Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments
whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well
as instruments for which determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.
Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheet, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities would include highly liquid government bonds and exchange traded equities.
If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of
securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities include U.S. agency securities,
mortgage-backed agency securities, obligations of states and political subdivisions and certain corporate, asset
backed and other securities. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.
The table below presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2012, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

Assets:
Investment securities available for sale
Loans held for sale
Derivative asset positions
Total fair value of assets measured on a
recurring basis
Liabilities:
Derivative liability positions
Total fair value of liabilities measured on a
recurring basis

Carrying
Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$ 18,691,026 $
62,071,509
420,880

53,391 $ 15,846,316 $ 2,791,319
––
62,071,509
––
––
420,880
––

$ 81,183,415 $

53,391 $ 78,338,705 $ 2,791,319

$

584,223 $

–– $

584,223 $

––

$

584,223 $

–– $

584,223 $

––
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The table below presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2011, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

Assets:
Investment securities available for sale
Loans held for sale
Derivative asset positions
Total fair value of assets measured on a
recurring basis
Liabilities:
Derivative liability positions
Total fair value of liabilities measured on a
recurring basis

Carrying
Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

$ 22,505,649 $
36,122,381
806,184

199,805 $ 21,200,948 $ 1,104,896
––
36,122,381
––
––
806,184
––

$ 59,434,214 $

199,805 $ 58,129,513 $ 1,104,896

$

716,986 $

–– $

716,986 $

––

$

716,986 $

–– $

716,986 $

––

The table below presents a reconciliation of level 3 assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
Balance, beginning of year
Total gains included in net income
Purchases
Sales
Transfers in or out of Level 3
Balance, end of year

$

$

2012

1,104,896
––
1,686,423
––
––
2,791,319

$

$

2011

1,049,954
88,110
11,020,038
(11,053,206)
––
1,104,896

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheet, as well as the general classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Loan impairment is reported when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Impaired loans are carried at
the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan's existing rate, or the fair value of collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. A portion of the allowance for loan losses is allocated to impaired loans if the value of
such loans is deemed to be less than the unpaid balance. If these allocations cause the allowance for loan losses to
require an increase, such increase is reported as a component of the provision for loan losses. Loan losses are
charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan is confirmed. When the fair
value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the
loan impairment as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the
fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the
Company records the loan impairment as nonrecurring Level 3.
Other real estate owned (“OREO”) is adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loan collateral to OREO.
Subsequently, OREO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Fair value is based upon independent
market prices, appraised values of the OREO or management’s estimation of the value of the OREO. When the fair
value of the OREO is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the
OREO as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value
of the OREO is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company
records the OREO as nonrecurring Level 3.
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The table below presents the Company’s assets for which a nonrecurring change in fair value has been recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2012, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those
measurements fall.

Assets:
Impaired loans
Other real estate owned
Total fair value of assets measured
on a nonrecurring basis

Carrying
Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Total losses for
the year ended
December 31,
2012

$ 14,943,761
13,520,752

$

––
––

$

––
––

$ 14,943,761
13,520,752

$

––
(2,762,432)

$ 28,464,513

$

––

$

––

$ 28,464,513

$ (2,762,432)

The table below presents the Company’s assets for which a nonrecurring change in fair value has been recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2011, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those
measurements fall.

Assets:
Impaired loans
Other real estate owned
Total fair value of assets measured
on a nonrecurring basis

Carrying
Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Total losses for
the year ended
December 31,
2011

$ 14,861,500
15,423,903

$

––
––

$

––
––

$ 14,861,500
15,423,903

$

––
(3,369,170)

$ 30,285,403

$

––

$

––

$ 30,285,403

$ (3,369,170)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties in an
orderly transaction. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances,
there are no quoted market prices for the Company’s various financial instruments. Where quoted prices are not
available, fair values are based on estimates using discounted cash flows and other valuation techniques. The use of
discounted cash flows can be significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. The following disclosures should not be considered as representative of the
liquidation value of the Bank, but rather represent a good-faith estimate of the increase or decrease in value of
financial instruments held by the Bank since purchase, origination, or issuance.
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The following methods and assumptions were used in this analysis in estimating the fair value of financial
instruments:


Cash, due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in banks, federal funds sold, and securities sold
under agreement to repurchase: The carrying amount of cash, due from banks, interest-bearing
deposits in banks, federal funds sold, federal funds purchased, and securities sold under agreement to
repurchase approximates fair value.



Securities: The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by an independent securities
accounting service provider using quoted prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges or
matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities
without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted securities. The carrying amount of equity
securities with no readily determinable fair value approximates fair value.



Loans: The carrying amount of variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant
change in credit risk approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-rate loans is estimated based on
discounted contractual cash flows, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar
terms to borrowers with similar credit quality. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated based on
discounted contractual cash flows or underlying collateral values, where applicable.



Loans Held for Sale (LHFS): Residential mortgage loans are originated for sale as whole loans in
the secondary market. These loans are carried at fair value, with changes in the fair value of these
loans recognized in mortgage banking noninterest income. Direct loan origination costs and fees are
deferred at origination, and then recognized in the gain or loss on loan sales when the loans are sold.
Gains and losses on loan sales (sales proceeds minus the carrying value of the loan sold) are recorded
as noninterest income.



Loan Sales Receivable: In accordance with trade date accounting guidance, the sale of residential
mortgage loans is recognized at the time that all conditions precedent to the sale have been met and
all material risks and rewards of loan ownership have passed from the Bank to the investor
purchasing the loans. This typically occurs when the physical loan documents are delivered to the
investor. Upon delivery of loan documents, the Bank records the gain or loss on sale of the loans and
recognizes the receivable from the investor for the proceeds of sale. The carrying amount of loan
sales receivable approximates fair value.



Derivative asset and liability positions: The fair value of derivative asset and liability positions is
based on available quoted market prices.



Deposits: The carrying amount of demand deposits, savings deposits and variable-rate certificates of
deposits approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-rate certificates of deposit is estimated based
on discounted contractual cash flows using interest rates currently being offered for certificates of
similar maturities.



Other Borrowings: The carrying amount of variable rate borrowings and federal funds purchased
approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed rate other borrowings is estimated based on
discounted contractual cash flows using the current incremental borrowing rates for similar type
borrowing arrangements.



Junior Subordinated Debentures: The fair value of the Company’s trust preferred securities is based
on discounted contractual cash flows using the current incremental borrowing rates for similar type
borrowing arrangements.



Accrued Interest: The carrying amount of accrued interest approximates fair value.



Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments: The carrying amount of commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit approximates fair value. The carrying amount of the off-balance-sheet financial
instruments is based on fees charged to enter into such agreements.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:
December 31,
2012
Carrying
Amount

2011
Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial assets:
Cash, due from banks, and interest-bearing deposits in
banks
$ 10,255,290
Federal funds sold
74,785
Securities available for sale
18,691,026
Securities held to maturity
––
Restricted equity securities
5,625,000
Loans held for sale
62,071,509
Loans, net
237,758,400
Loan sales receivable
109,236,511
Derivative asset positions
420,880
Accrued interest receivable
810,013

10,255,290 $ 4,090,167
74,785
243,046
18,691,026
22,505,649
––
––
5,625,000
5,136,250
62,071,509
36,122,381
221,747,397 249,445,716
109,236,511 126,592,128
420,880
806,184
810,013
954,797

4,090,167
243,046
22,505,649
––
5,136,250
36,122,381
246,790,693
126,592,128
806,184
954,797

Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase
Other borrowings
Junior subordinated debentures
Derivative liability positions
Accrued interest payable

338,967,426
6,055,000
82,987,763
7,217,000
584,223
448,096

356,151,418
8,766,000
70,724,008
7,217,000
716,986
681,054

337,521,361
6,055,000
81,427,609
7,217,000
584,223
448,096
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354,671,346
8,766,000
68,447,000
7,217,000
716,986
681,054

Note 20.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Mortgage banking derivatives used in the ordinary course of business consist of best efforts and mandatory forward
sales contracts and interest rate lock commitments on residential mortgage loan applications. Forward sales contracts
represent future commitments to deliver loans at a specified price and by a specified date and are used to manage
interest rate risk on loan commitments and mortgage loans held for sale. Rate lock commitments represent
commitments to fund loans at a specific rate and by a specified expiration date. These derivatives involve underlying
items, such as interest rates, and are designed to mitigate risk. Substantially all of these instruments expire within 60
days from the date of issuance. Notional amounts are amounts on which calculations and payments are based, but
which do not represent credit exposure, as credit exposure is limited to the amounts required to be received or paid.
The following tables include the notional amounts and realized gain (loss) for mortgage banking derivatives
recognized in mortgage banking income for the periods ending December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments (in thousands)

December 31, 2012

Mandatory forward sales contracts
Notional amount
Loss on change in market value of mandatory
forward sales contracts
Derivative asset balance included in other assets
Derivative liability balance included in other liabilities

Best efforts forward sales contracts
Notional amount
Loss on change in market value of best efforts
forward sales contracts
Derivative asset balance included in other assets
Derivative liability balance included in other liabilities
Rate lock loan commitments
Notional amount
Gain on change in market value of rate lock
commitments
Derivative asset balance included in other assets
Derivative liability balance included in other liabilities

December 31, 2011

$

123,190

$

97,395

$
$
$

(93)
134
228

$
$
$

(259)
196
456

$

63,519

$

50,890

$
$
$

(218)
24
242

$
$
$

(107)
81
188

$

150,715

$

141,330

$
$
$

148
263
114

$
$
$

456
529
73

Forward sales contracts also contain an element of risk in that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of
such agreements. In the event the parties to deliver commitments are unable to fulfill their obligations, the Company
could potentially incur significant additional costs by replacing the positions at then current market rates. The
Company manages its risk of exposure by limiting counterparties to those banks and institutions deemed appropriate
by management and the Board of Directors. The Company does not expect any counterparty to default on their
obligations and therefore, the Company does not expect to incur any cost related to counterparty default.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on loans held for sale and rate lock loan commitments. As market
interest rates increase or decrease, the fair value of mortgage loans held for sale and rate lock commitments will
decrease or increase accordingly. To offset this interest rate risk, the Company enters into derivatives such as
forward contracts to sell loans. The fair value of these forward sales contracts will change as market interest rates
change, and the change in the value of these instruments is expected to largely, though not entirely, offset the change
in fair value of loans held for sale and rate lock commitments. The objective of this activity is to minimize the
exposure to losses on rate lock commitments and loans held for sale due to market interest rate fluctuations. The net
effect of derivatives on earnings will depend on risk management activities and a variety of other factors, including
market interest rate volatility, the amount of rate lock commitments that close, the ability to fill the forward
contracts before expiration, and the time period required to close and sell loans.
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Note 21.

Supplemental Segment Information

The Bank has three reportable business segments: community banking, SBA lending, and mortgage banking
operations. The Company evaluates performance based on profit and loss from operations before income taxes, not
including nonrecurring gains and losses.
The community banking segment provides traditional banking services offered through the Bank’s four full service
branch locations in Lady’s Island and Port Royal, South Carolina; Fernandina Beach, Florida; and Meigs, Georgia.
At December 31, 2012 this segment had 75 full time equivalent employees including staff that provides operational
and administrative support to the other two reportable segments.
The Small Business Administration lending division segment originates SBA loans throughout the southeastern
United States by the Bank’s SBA business development officers. These officers serve markets in Jacksonville, Ft.
Meyers, Orlando and Vero Beach, Florida; Atlanta, Georgia; Charlotte, North Carolina; and Beaufort, South
Carolina. The majority of loans originated by the division are processed through the SBA 7(a) loan program.
Participations in these loans are typically sold to secondary market investors within 30 days of the loan being
funded. At December 31, 2012 the division had 11 full time equivalent employees and conducted all loan funding,
sales and servicing activity from the Bank’s operations center in Fernandina Beach, Florida.
The mortgage banking operations segment was staffed by 276 full time equivalent employees at December 31, 2012
who originate residential mortgage loans through one of four distinct delivery channels. These channels include (1.)
a network of independent mortgage brokers, (2.) a national network of traditional retail mortgage lending branches,
(3.) an internet leads based retail loan origination branch, and (4.) retail mortgage lending through the Bank’s
deposit branch locations. Most of these loans are closed by the Bank and sold to various investors on the secondary
market while a limited number of loans are retained in the Bank’s loan portfolio. Additionally, approximately 10%
of the loan production is brokered away to other lenders and so are not closed by the Bank. All wholesale and
internet retail mortgage banking activity is conducted in the Bank’s mortgage banking offices in Atlanta, Georgia, as
is the national retail mortgage lending administration function. The national retail lending branches are located in
California, Florida, Georgia, Kansas, Maryland, New York, and Ohio.
All direct costs and revenues generated by each business segment are allocated to the segment; however, there is no
allocation of indirect corporate overhead costs to the SBA lending or mortgage banking segments. The Company
accounts for intersegment revenues and expenses as if the revenue/expense transactions were to third parties at
current market prices.
The Company’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services to a
different customer base. They are managed separately because each segment has different types and levels of credit
and interest rate risk.
(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,

Community Banking
2012

Interest income
$ 10,910 $
Interest expense
2,318
Net interest income
8,592
Provision for loan losses
3,816
Net interest income after provision
4,776
Non interest income
1,282
Non interest expense
14,163
Net income (loss) before tax
expense (benefit)
(8,105)
Income tax expense (benefit)
(1,929)
Net income (loss)
$ (6,176) $

2011

12,828
3,624
9,204
2,543
6,661
1,080
14,698

2012

$ 1,470
88
1,382
115
1,267
3,056
1,680

(6,957)
2,643
(2,187)
793
(4,770) $ 1,850
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Mortgage Banking
Operations

SBA Lending Operations
2011

$

$

1,084
36
1,048
192
856
3,481
1,398
2,939
852
2,087

2012

$

$

4,728
1,818
2,910
153
2,757
44,425
38,279
8,903
2,693
6,210

2011

$

$

3,968
1,573
2,395
130
2,265
16,101
14,040
4,326
1,286
3,040

Note 22.

Condensed Financial Information of Coastal Banking Company (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31,
2012

2011

Assets
Cash and due from banks
Investment in Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust I & II
Investment in subsidiary bank
Other assets
Total assets

578,068 $ 1,491,776
217,000
217,000
42,535,754
40,043,648
11,863
13,367
$43,342,685 $ 41,765,791

Liabilities
Junior subordinated debentures
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

$ 7,217,000
1,684,444
8,901,444

$ 7,217,000
1,387,241
8,604,241

Shareholders’ Equity
Shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

34,441,241
$43,342,685

33,161,550
$ 41,765,791

$

Condensed Statements of Operations
For the years ended
December 31,
2012
2011

Income
Interest income
Other income
Total income

$

Expenses
Interest expense
Other operating expenses
Total expense
Loss before income tax expense (benefits) and equity in undistributed earnings of
subsidiary

13,490
—
13,490

$

253,925
586,960
840,885

350,534
770,547
1,121,081

(827,395)

(1,090,850)

—

Income tax expense (benefits)
Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary

(49,202)

(827,395)

(1,041,648)

2,711,039

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary
Net income

$
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25,673
4,558
30,231

1,883,644

1,398,872
$

357,224

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Equity in undistributed income of Bank
Stock-based compensation expense
Change in other assets and liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

For the years ended
December 31,
2012
2011

$

$

(2,711,039)
90,172
(198,789)
(936,012)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash provided by financing activities

22,304
22,304

Net decrease in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year
Cash and due from banks at end of year

Note 23.

1,883,644

$

(913,708)
1,491,776
578,068 $

357,224
(1,398,872)
147,881
344,024
(549,743)
—
—
(549,743)
2,041,519
1,491,776

Subsequent Events

Payment of Accrued Interest on Junior Subordinated Debentures
Pursuant to the terms of the junior subordinated debentures held by Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust I, the
Company has the option to defer distributions on such securities at any time, and from time to time, for a period not
to exceed twenty consecutive quarters. During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company elected to defer the interest
payments on its trust preferred securities. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Company is
prohibited from paying interest on its trust preferred securities absent prior written approval from the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond. The Company received written non-objection from FRB Richmond to pay all interest
accrued and payable as of December 30, 2012 as well as the following quarterly interest payment, payable in April
2013.
Pursuant to the terms of the junior subordinated debentures held by Coastal Banking Company Statutory Trust II,
the Company has the option to defer distributions on such securities at any time, and from time to time, for a period
not to exceed twenty consecutive quarters. During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company elected to defer the
interest payments on its trust preferred securities. Furthermore, pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Company is
prohibited from paying interest on its trust preferred securities absent prior written approval from the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond. The Company received written non-objection from FRB Richmond to pay all interest
accrued and payable as of January 23, 2013 as well as the following quarterly interest payment, payable in April
2013.
Payment of Deferred Dividends and Accrued Interest on TARP Preferred Stock
The Board has approved and Coastal paid all dividends on the TARP preferred through November 15, 2010.
However, pursuant to the MOU entered into with the Federal Reserve Board, the Company is prohibited from
paying dividends on its TARP preferred stock without prior regulatory approval. As a result of the Federal Reserve
Board objection, the eight quarterly dividends due since November 15, 2010 through the end of 2012 have been
deferred. Subsequent to December 31, 2012 the Federal Reserve Board issued a non-objection to the payment of
three TARP preferred stock dividends on February 15, 2013. The Board approved and Coastal paid three TARP
preferred dividends totaling $373,125 on February 15, 2013, the current TARP dividend due on that date and two of
the eight previously deferred TARP dividends together with interest accrued on all previously deferred dividends.
Payment of Dividend from CBC National Bank to Coastal Banking Company
Coastal Banking Company received a $500,000 dividend on February 7, 2013 from its banking subsidiary CBC
National Bank, representing the first such dividend paid by the bank to the holding company since 2008.
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Participation in TARP Auction
On February, 22, 2013 Coastal Banking Company was included along with eight other institutions in the Treasury’s
list of TARP preferred stock that they intend to auction. Treasury expects to commence the auctions, which will be
offered principally to domestic qualified institutional buyers and certain domestic institutional accredited investors,
on or about February 25, 2013. The auctions are expected to close at 6:00 pm, New York City time, on February 28,
2013. These offerings will be executed using a modified Dutch auction methodology that establishes a market price
by allowing investors to submit bids at specified increments similar to the process Treasury used to auction other
CPP investments. The auction procedures will not include the submission of “all or none” bids.
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Stock Information
The Common Stock of Coastal Banking Company, Inc. is not listed on any exchange. However, the stock is quoted
on the OTC (Over the Counter) Bulletin Board under the symbol “CBCO.” There were approximately 600
shareholders of record on December 31, 2012. The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices as quoted
on the OTC Bulletin Board during the periods indicated. The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail
mark-up, mark-down, or commissions, and may not represent actual transactions.
Years Ended December 31,
2012

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$
$
$
$

High

4.50
5.00
4.75
6.00

$
$
$
$

2011
Low

1.76
3.87
3.70
4.05

$
$
$
$

High

2.40
2.25
2.40
2.25

$
$
$
$

Low

1.65
1.70
1.80
1.76

The Company has never declared or paid a cash dividend and does not expect to do so in the foreseeable future. The
ability of the Company to pay cash dividends is dependent upon receiving cash dividends from the Bank. However,
federal banking regulations restrict the amount of cash dividends that can be paid to the Company by the Bank.
Further, pursuant to our issuance of 9,950 shares of the Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series A, to the Treasury under the TARP CPP, the preferred stock has dividend rights that are senior to those
of our common stock. In addition, pursuant to the terms under which the preferred stock was issued, there are
limitations on the payment of dividends on common stock. All of our outstanding shares of common stock are
entitled to share equally in dividends from funds legally available when, and if, declared by the board of directors.
In addition, pursuant to the MOU we entered into with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond, we are prohibited
from declaring and paying cash dividends, including dividends on our common stock and our preferred stock issued
pursuant to our participation in the TARP CPP, and interest on our trust preferred securities, without prior written
approval from the Federal Reserve Board. Any future determination relating to our dividend policy will be made at
the discretion of the Board of Directors.
Copies of the Company’s Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 will be furnished at no charge
to shareholders upon written request to: Paul R. Garrigues, Chief Financial Officer, Coastal Banking Company,
Inc., 36 Sea Island Parkway, Beaufort, SC 29907.
This Annual Report serves as the Annual Financial Disclosure Statement furnished pursuant to Part 350 of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s Rules and Regulations. This Statement has not been reviewed or
confirmed for accuracy or relevance by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency.
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About Coastal Banking Company Inc.
Coastal Banking Company Inc., is the $475.0 million-asset bank holding company of CBC National Bank,
headquartered in Fernandina Beach, Fla., which provides a full range of consumer and business banking services
through full-service banking offices in Beaufort, S.C., Fernandina Beach, Meigs, Ga., and Port Royal, S.C., and
commercial loan production offices in Jacksonville, Fla., and Savannah, Ga.
Our residential mortgage banking division, headquartered in Atlanta, includes an Internet-based retail mortgage
operation as well as a National Retail Group that has lending offices in Florida, Georgia, Maryland, New York and
Ohio. The company’s Small Business Administration lending division originates SBA loans primarily in Jacksonville
and Vero Beach, Fla., Atlanta and Beaufort. The company’s common stock is publicly traded on the OTCQB Markets
under the symbol CBCO.

www.coastalbanking.com

